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it Nopr i The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Public School System
Nen Public Sckool Rep. (PSS) of the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands (CNMI) for
o Asibry Manglona Hocog the year ended September 30_r 2903,.is hereby submitted as yandated by
lz"d”?’hp"s”mﬁ" both local ordinances and territorial statutes. These ordinances and
statutes require that the PSS issue annually a report on its financial
Teacker Represeniativeposition and activity and that an independent firm of certified public
accountants will audit this report. Responsibility for both the
I accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with management. To the
best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all
material respects and are reported in a manner that presents fairly the
financial position and results of operations of the various funds and
account groups of the PSS. All disclosures necessary to enable the
reader to gain an understanding of the PSS’ activities hawve been
included. The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in
three sections: introducteory, financial, and single audit. The
introductory section, which is unaudited, includes this letter of
transmittal, an organizational chart, a list of the PSS' principal
elected and appointed officials. The financial section includes the
general-purpose financial statements and the combining and individual
fund and account group financial statements and schedules, as well as
the independent auditor's report on these financial statements and
schedules.

The PSS is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity
with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, the U.
8. Office of Management and Budget's Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the Commonwealth
of the Northern Mariana Islands Single Audit Implementation Act.

I Information related to this single audit, including a schedule of
expenditures of federal awards, the report on compliance and on
internal control, reports on compliance with requirements applicable to
each major federal program, and a schedule of findings and questioned

. costs are included in the single audit section of the comprehensive
annual financial report.

The financial reporting entity includes all the funds and account
groups of the Public School System, The members of the Board are
elected by the public and have decision-making authority. Although the
CNMI collects all taxes, the Board determines how the school system
will spend the funds generated for schools.

Izl

Board of Edwucation . Commissioner of Education
elephone : (670) 664-3727 Telephone : (670) 664-3700
ax D (670) 664-3711 website: Aitp:[fovw.saipan.comigonfbranches {psslindex.kim Fox - {670) 664-3798



The CNMI cannot modify the school system's budget nor is the CNMI
entitled to share in any surpluses or required to finance any deficits
of the school system.

For these reasons, the Public School System is not fiscally dependent
on the CNMI and therefore is recognized as a primary government, as
defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The school
system also receives funding from federal government sources and must
comply with the concomitant requirements of the Federal government.

FINANCIATL STATEMENTS

This letter of transmittal should be read in conjunction with the
Management’'s Discussion and Analysis (pages 3-10), which focuses on
current activities, accounting changes and currently known facts.

In October 2001, the PSS elected to implement change in governmental
financial reporting in accordance with GASB 34 and the Government of
the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands. The format and
purpose of these changes are addressed in the notes to the financial
statements, reflect on and explain the effects and results of these
changes. We believe this new presentation will provide better
information to the user of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) of Public School System. '

GOVERNMENTAL STRUCTURE, LOCAL ECONOMIC CONDITION, AND OUTLOOR

The Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands Public School System
is one comprehensive school district serving the entire Commonwealth;
including the islands of Saipan, Rota, and Tinian. The system was
created through the enactment of Public Law 6-10 in January 1988. For
school year 2001-2002, it is serving over 10,000 students from pre-
school through 12th grade in 12 elementary schools, 4 middle schools, 5
high schools, and 12 Headstart Centers.

At the helm of the school system are the CNMI Board of Education and
the Commissioner. The Board consists of five voting members and one
appointed non-voting member, three members from Saipan, one member from
Rota, and one member from Tinian. The public elects the wvoting
members, who serve four-year terms, on an island wide basis. The
Commissioner is selected by the Board and serves as Chief Executive
officer of the system. The Board is responsible for setting policy,
while the Commissioner and the administrative team are charged with
managing the operations of the school system.

A principal is charged with the responsibility of the total school
operations, and administers each individual school. Appropriate
instructional and support personnel, based on pupil enrollment, staff
the schools. The school principal and faculty work cooperatively with
instructional specialists and central administrative staff in
developing and implementing effective instructional programs.

The school system has over 1,000 full-time and over 150 part-time
employees and is the largest employer in the government sector. The
system has nearly 550 regular classroom teachers, not including media
specialists, counselors, psychologists, etc., and allots regular
classroom teachers at a teacher/student ratio of 1:20 for kindergarten,
grades 1,2,3; 1:25 for grades 4,5,6; 1:30 for grades 7-12.
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Most students are assigned to and attend their "in zone school" =-- the
school assigned is based on the parent's or guardian's home address.
In some instances, an ‘out of zone’ school may be assigned due to over
enrollment at the “in zone’ school. Transportation is provided for
students living at least 1 mile from the assigned school.

The indigencus people of the CNMI are the Chamorro and Carolinian. The
official languages of the CNMI are Chamorro, Carolinian, and English.
English is the primary language of instruction in the Public School
System of the CNMI. Chamorrc and Carolinian are taught in the Public
School System as part of a bilingual program.

The indigenous people were conguered by the Spanish in the 16" Century,
sold to the Germans in the early 20" Century, taken by Japan in 1914 to
1944, administered as a UN Trust territory until 1976. In 1976, the
indigenous people voted to become citizens of the United States.

The Commonwealth has one of the best climates in the world, and the
purest air of any first world country. The temperature ranges from 74
degrees to 88 degrees all year round. It als2o boasts the most
attractive tax structure of a U.S. possesgsion. The islands are lush
with tropical jungles and scenic beaches and dive locations. There are
numerous golf courses where a local can golf for a fourth of the cost
on the Mainland.

The economy of the area is stabilized by the presence of a fairly large
garment-manufacturing complex. Tourism from Japan is also a major
source of revenue for the CHMI. The government of the CHMI is the
largest employer on the islands. With the coming changes in 2005 of
the trade treaties, it is not known what effect these treaties will
have on the economy of the CNMI. Since Japan has been in a prolonged
economic slump, the tourist industry has also been in a slump.

The quantity and gquality of the instructional programs of the school
system are directly dependent on the funding provided and on effective
management and efficient use of those funds. We recognize the
important trust and responsibility we are given in the management of
public resources and continue to be vigilant and trustworthy in
fulfilling that responsibility. During the course of 2002-2003, we
aggressively pursued ways to reduce costs and improve efficiency by
eliminating administrative overtime and out-of-system travel, moving
purchasing deadlines to earlier dates, and restricting special projects
that cross fiscal years. Such efforts have allowed the school system
to end the fiscal year 2002-2003 with a strong financial position.

We believe that continuation of these financial management practices
coupled with appropriate planning should result in continued strong
financial position and provide appropriate fiscal accountability to the
public and continued improvement of programs.

PUBLIC SCHQOOL SYSTEM MISSION AND GOAL

The Public School System has adopted a mission for the school system
and goals and strategies to achieve the mission. Reaching these high
standards involves concentrated effort and determination by all
employees of the school system. The following 1list provides the
mission, goal, strategies and measurements.



Mission; The CNMI Public School System will educate each student to be
a responsible and productive citizen who can effectively manage future
challenges.

Goal: By 2008, 80% of all students at Kindergarten through 8 grade
will be at or above grade level as measured by CNMI Standards Based

Assessment and nationally by the Stanford Achievement Test, 10
Edition.

Strategy: Reduce the achievement gap between all students’ actual
achievement and their potential achievement.

Use the Baldrige system of continuous improvement to insure that
decision-making processes are data driven and student focused.

Redefine the magnet program sc that it becomes a vehicle to help attain
this strategy.

Support the wuse of +technology to aid student learning and create
additional time for instruction.

Measurement: Percentage of students in under-performing groups at or
above grade level will increase.

Strategy: Improve the district’s ability to recruit and retain a high
quality workforce.

Recruit and retain gquality teachers whose vision, potential and
abilities support leaving no child behind.

Strive to provide an adequate compensation package for all employees.

Ensure that the school system has an adequate proof of substitute
teachers.

Develop a systematic process for getting feedback from staff about job
satisfaction, working conditions, and support systems.

Develop strategies to make more time available for teachers to teach
and to grow professionally.

Offer training for staff that builds their capacity to improve the
achievement of all students (i.e., diversity/poverty training; use of
date: assessment training).

Support and expand the recruitment and training of mentors.

Measurement: Decrease in turnover.

Strategy: Improve the internal and external communications within the
district.

Develop a system-wide strategic communications plan.

Develop a process for communicating to teachers and other employees
about system initiatives.

Measurgment: Community survey of school system’s publics.
VI



Building Program

The school system's building program has been a high priority of the
Board of Education with over 15,000 students expected by 2010. The
CNMI government approved House Bill No. 14-62. This bill allows the
Public School System to build additional classrocoms for both Kagman
Elementary and Kagman High School. It also proposes that PSS build a
Tinian and a Rota Headstart Center. These projects will be financed by
the interest earned on the General Obligation Bond of PSS, and
construction will begin in 2004,

The Board of Education submitted a long term Capital Improvement
Projects Plan to the CHMI government. These projects include an As-
Matuis Elementary Schocl, a Marpi Secondary School, a second Kagman
Elementary School, a Kagman High School expansion, a Southern High
School expansion. Also in the proposal were major renovations to the
older schools in the CNMI. The total proposed plan had an estimated
cost of $50,995,988. These projects if approved by the government would
be built over the next 7 to 10 years.

The cost of public education in the CNMI is financed primarily by the
Gross Receipts Tax of business owners and the Chapter II Tax of the
individual. The CNMI has a centralized tax system, and not a localized
property tax system, the CNMI Public School System allocates its
$36.084 million on a per student ratic for non-personnel expenditures.
In conjunction with the $4 million federal funds, the CNMI allocates
its Personnel budget on an impartial preset staffing patterm. The
local funding level for the Public School System has remained flat
since 1999.

The students enrolled in the Public School System have increased from
9,500 in 1998 to 10,500 in 2003. fThis represents a 10.5% increase in
five years. The teachers have increased from 464 in 1998 to 554 in
2003. Teachers funded by consolidated federal funds increased from 37
teachers in 1998 to 68 teachers in 2003. Federal funds alsc paid for 72
Special Education teachers in FY2003. The federal funds in 2003 paid
for 116 teacher aides as opposed to 51 teacher aides in 1998. As can
be seen, the increased payroll for the additional teachers and teacher
aides has been financed by additional federal funds. The Central
Office staff was reduced, and additional federal funds were obtained to
finance the growth of the Public School System.

The management of the school system is responsible for establishing and
maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the
assets of the school system are protected from loss, theft, or misuse
and to ensure that adeguate accounting data are compiled to allow for
the preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The
internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived and the valuation of costs and
benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

VII



As a recipient of federal and local financial assistance, the school
system is also responsible for ensuring that an adeguate internal
control structure is in place to ensure and document compliance with
applicable laws and regulations related to these programs. This
internal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation by
management.

The CNMI Public School Budget and Fiscal Control Act mandates the
adoption of an annual balanced budget resclution by July 1 each year.
If the Budget is not passed by the Legislature and the Governor, PSS
operates its budgets on a continuing resolution from fiscal year 1999.
Fiscal year 2003, which begins on October 1%, 2003 and ends on
September 30, 2003 was a budget on the Continuing Resolution from 1999.
The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with
legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget and in
funds provided by the federal, state, and local governments. The final
budget, as continued from the fiscal year 1999, is reflected in the
financial section.

The school system also maintains an encumbrance accounting system as
one method of maintaining budgetary control. Encumbered amounts do not
lapse at year-end, they continue as outstanding encumbrances until
exhausted.

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the
financial section of this report, the school system continues to meet
its responsibility for sound financial management.

General Government Functions and General Fund Balance

The following schedule prezents a summary of the budgets, using the
modified accrual basis, of the Commonwealth funds and PSS funds for the
fiscal years ended September 30, 1997 thru September 30, 2003.

Primary factors contributing to the total increase in the local and
federal funds were galaries and the related benefit costs. Positions
were added to accommodate the continued growth in enrcllment. Central
support costs decreased as a percent of the total by continued
reduction of costs.

Other instructional costs increased primarily due to the expansion of
the hdvanced Development Institute and Headstart, and other similar
programs, established to assist all students in reaching the goals set
for the school system.

Capital Projects Fund

Capital Projects were financed by the issuance of a $15,000,000 Bond,
and the matching funds of $15,000,000 by the CNMI government. In 2001,
two elementary schools and cne high school were finished. The remainder
of the $30 million is for modernization of Rota, Tinian, and Saipan
physical plants.

The capital projects are projected on a seven-year cycle. PS8 is
projecting that a new elementary school be built in the As-Matuis area.
Also contemplated is a secondary school for the Marpi area. Additional
classrooms will also have to be built in the Kagman area.
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In addition to these major improvements, additional classrooms will
have to be added in most of the Saipan aschools. Rota and Tinian and
the Northern Islands are also expected to have additional buildings.
This comprehensive building program is only in the planning stage at
this time. No funds for these projects have been identified at this
time. The estimated time for the completion of these projects is fiscal
year 2013.

Cash Management Policies and Practices

PSS requests drawdowns from the Federal government as the funds are
expended. PSS does earn interest income on its Federal drawdowns on the
transfer delay from Bank of Hawaii to Bank of Guam. Bank of Hawaii
offers the best earnings potential for short-term deposits. Bank of
Guam is used as the bank for transactions due to its banking
relationship with the CNMI government. The payroll for the Public
School System is processed by the CNMI Finance Department.

The statutes authorize the Board to invest in obligations of the United
States; obligations of any agency of the United States if payment of
interest and principal of such cbligations is fully guaranteed by the
United States; that the investment is fully insured by the United
States or an agency thereof or by any mutual deposit guaranty
association authorized by the state; certain other federal agencies;
and any form of investment allowed by law to the state treasurer.

Risk Management

The CNMI government is a self-insured entity. The government has
limited its general liability to individuals to $100,000 by statute.
For this reason the government does not maintain any insurance on its
buildings, or employees. At some future date, the Fublic School System
may insure some of its assets, as an autonomous agency as it is not
required to follow the CNMI‘s government of self-insurance.

PSS does require performance bonds on all its building projects
financed by the government bonds.

Other Information

Independent Andit Commonwealth statutes and Federal statutes reguire an
annual audit to be performed by independent certified public
accountants. The firm of J. Scott Magliari & Company was selected by
the Board of Education. In addition to meeting the requirements set
forth in Commonwealth statutes, the audit was designed to meet the
requirements of the Federal Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, as
required by U. 8. Office of Management and Budget’s Circular A-133.

The auditors used the generally accepted auditing standards of the
United States and the government auditing standards as set forth in the
Government Accounting Office’s Government Auditing Standards. The
auditor’s report on the general-purpese financial statements and
combining and individual fund statements and schedules are included in
the financial section of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR‘'S REPORT

The Board of Education
Public School System

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of governmental activities,
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregating fund
information of the Public Schoel System (PSS), a component unit of the
Cowmonwealth of the Worthern Mariana Islands, as of September 30, 2003 and 2002,
and for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility
of PSS’ management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on my audits.

I conducted my audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States of America. Those standards reguire that I plan and perform
the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. I believe that my audits provide a reasonable
basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the governmental activities, the
business type activities, each major fund, and the aggregating fund information
of PSS as of September 30, 2003 and 2002, and the respective changes in
financial posztlon and cash flows, where approprlate, thereof and the respective
budgetary comparison for the general fund for the years then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As described in Note 1 to financial statements, the Board adopted Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 34 on October 1, 2001.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD & A) on pages 3 to 10 is not a
required part of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information
required by the GASB. I have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.
However, I did not audit this information and express no opinion on it.



My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the PSS’ basic financial statements. The
introductory section and the combining non-major fund financial statements are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements. The combining individual non-major fund have been
gsubjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in my opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The intreoductory
section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, I express no opinion on
them.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, I have also issued a report
dated March 26, 2004 on my consideration of the PS8’ internal control over
financial reporting and my tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulatlons, contracts and grants. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Goversment Auditing Standards and should be
read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of my audit.

% = et I\ ‘u-.‘.ica Wb
onwealth of theUNorthern Mari Islands

March 26, 2004



Management's Digcussion and Analysis
This section of the CNMI Public School System financial report represents our

discussion and analysis of the financial performance of the Public School
System for the year ended September 30, 2003. This information should be
read in conjunction with the audited financial statements included in this
report (pages 11 to 14).

Financial Highlights
. The total government net assets amount +to $83,172,358, which was a

decrease of $1,944,350 from the previous year. The decrease was primarily
caused by a decrease of $850,112 on the cash and cash equivalents at the
close of the fiscal year.

. The current assets of the school exceeded its current liabilities at the
close of the fiscal year by $5,833,245,

. The accrued leave liability of the =school increased by 5418,187. Ta
date, the school system has total accrued leave liability of $4,151,264.

. The total 1liabilities decreased at the close of the fiscal year by
$1,403,318.

. Capital agsets of the school system totaled $79,687,750 (net of
accumulated depreciation), an increase of $4,688,275 at the close of the
fiscal year. :

Overview of the Financial Statements

The annual report of the Public School System consists of three components:
They are as follows: Management's Discussion and Analysis and Basic Financial
Statements and Required Supplemental Section.

The basic financial statements include two types of statements that present
different views of +the School System's finances. The first are the
government-wide (also called district-wide) statements. The district-wide
statements are presented on the full accrual basis of accounting and include
the statement of net assets and the statement of activities. The statement of
net assets includes all of the CNMI Public School System assets and
liabilities. Assets and liabilities are classified in the order of relative
liquidity for assets and due date for liabilities. This statement provides a
summary of the school system's investment in assets and obligations to
creditors. Liquidity and financial flexibility can be evaluated using the
information contained in this statement. The statement of activities
summarizes the school system's revenues and expenses for the current year. A
net (expense) revenue format is used to indicate to what extent each function
is self-sufficient.

The second type of statement included in the basic financial statements is
the fund financial statement, which is presented for the schoecl system's
governmental funds. These statements present the governmental funds on the
modified accrual basis of accounting, measuring the near term inflows and
outflows of financial resources and what is available at year-end to spend in
the next fiscal year, The fund financial statements focus on the school
system's most significant funds. Because a different basis of accounting is
used in the district-wide statements, reconciliation from the governmental
fund financial statements to the district-wide statements is required. The
district-wide statements provide information about the school system as an
economic unit, while the fund financial statements provide information on the
financial resources of the school system's major funds.



The two district-wide statements report the school system’s net assets and
how they have changed.

Net assets - the difference between the school system's assets and
liagbilities 1is one way to measure the district's £financial health oz
position.

¢ Over time, increases or decreases in the school system's net assets are
an indicator of whether its financial position is improving or
deteriorating.

The district's activities are divided into two categories in the district-
wide statements:

s Governmental activities: Most of the school system's basic services are
included here, such as regular and special education, transportation,
and administration. Local funding and federal aid finance most of these
activities.

» Business-type activities: This accounts for the food service program
within the school system.

Fund Financial Statements
The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the

school system's funds, focusing on its most significant or "major" funds -
not the school system as a whole. Funds are accounting devices the school
system uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending on
particular programs.

The Public Schools System Board of Education has two types of funds:

Governmental funds: Most of the public school system’s basic services are
included in the governmental funds, which generally focus on two things — how
cash and other assets can readily be converted to cash flow in and out and
the balances left at vear-end that are available for spending. As a result
of this focus, the governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-
term view that helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the district’'s
programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-
term focus of the district-wide statements, additional informaticon at the
bottom of the governmental funds statements, in the form of reconciliation,
explains the relationship (or differences) between them.

Proprietary Funds: The Food and Nutrition Assistance Program granted by the
United States Department of Agriculture is reported in the proprietary funds.
The proprietary fund statement is reported on the same basis of accounting as
the government-wide statements — full accrual. The Public Schools System has
two proprietary funds — all enterprise funds — the Federal Program Income
Fund and the Food Nutrition Assistance Program of the Special Revenue Fund.

Financial Analysis of the School System as a Whole
Net assets are an indicator of the fiscal health of the School System.

Assets for governmental activities exceeded liabilities by approximately
$83,172,358 as of September 30, 2003. The largest component of net assets is
invested in capital assets disclosing an amount of $79,687,750 at fiscal
year-end, which comprises 96% of the total net assets.



Following is a summary of the Statement of Net Assets:

Condensed Statement of Net Assets

September 30, 2003 and 2002

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities 2003 2002

Current and ¢other assets $ 9,811,521 3 106,599 § 9,918,120 $11,138,595
Capital impraovement projects in progress 1,888,369 - 1,888,369 8,538,825
Capital assets, net of accumulated

depreciation 79,681,538 6,212 79,687,750 74,998,775
TOTAL ASSETS _$91,.381,428 _§ 112,811 _£9],494,239 _£$94,676,195
Current and other liabilities $ 4,143,988 3§ 26,629 % 4,170,617 § 5,826,410
Accrued leave liability 4,151,264 - 4,151,264 3,733,077
TOTAL LIABILITIES B,295,252 26,629 B,321,881 9,559,487
Investment in capital asgsets 79,681,538 6,212 79,687,750 74,998,775
Restricted for:
Encumbrances 8,048,616 103,606 8,152,222 4,784,396
Capital improvement projects in progress 1,888,369 - 1,888,369 8,511,378
Unrestricted (6,532,347} (23,636) {6,555,983) (3,177,841)
TOTAL NET ASSETS 83,086,176 86,182 83,172,358 85,116,708
TOTAL LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS §2L,;§;!§g§ § 112,811 §2;E§25!g;g §2§!§Z§Eé2§

. -5



Federal and Local Budget Review

Exhibit I

Total Local & Federal Funding
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|MPSS Local Budget BFederal Fund |

Ags can be speen by a review of the graphs presented above, Federal funding
increased from $13 million in 1998 to 523 wmillion in 20032, The Logcal funds
dropped from $42 million in 1928 to $37 million in 15589. Local funds have
remained at $37 million for four years while the student growth jumped from
9,246 students din 1998 to 11,244 students in 2003. This represents a 22%
increase in student enrollment. This was accomplished by cutting back employees
in the Central Office.

Year Total Funding Federal Funding Local Funding
Amount % Amount %
1890 $29,555,215 $10, 000,000 34% $19,555,215 66%
1591 35,407,990 10,000,000 28B% 25,407,990 72%
1982 41,214,621 11,000,000 27% 30,214,621 73%
1953 40,194,355 11,000,000 27% 29,194,355 73%
1994 41,214,621 11,000,000 27% 30,214,621 73%
1995 43,320,500 11,000,000 25% 32,320,500 75%
1956 43,320,500 11,000,000 25% 32,320,500 75%
19297 53,763,700 12,000,000 22% 41,763,700 78%
1998 55,100,000 13,000,000 24% 42,100,000 76%
1999 53,730,342 16,000,000 30% 37,730,342 70%
2000 53,280,342 17,000,000 32% 36,280,342 68%
2001 54,230,342 17,600,000 31% 37,230,342 69%
2002 55,230,342 18,000,000 33% 37,230,342 67%
2003 60,230,342 23,000,000 38% 37,230,342 62%
-5-



The contribution of Local funding to the total funding has varied between 62%
to 75% for the 13-yvear period from 1990 to 2003. The CNMI government has
performed well in the maintenance of Local funding for education in the
difficult economic times from 1998 to 2003. The Federal Funds of FY2003, which
were consclidated using Title VI, were of great wvalue to the Public School
System. Under Title VI, PSS was allowed to purchase textbooks, pay substitute
teachers, pay for new computers, pay for upgrading of teaching skills, and hire
new teachergs. In effect except for repairs and maintenance and operational
supplies, the Federal component was a major factor in maintaining the academic
integrity of the Public School System.

Exhibit II - Cost Per Child

18,000 —

16,000 —

11,251

14,000 — ) 10,001

12,000 —

10,000 —

8,000 —

2,000 —

1,552

1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
Year

Bl Cost Per Child - Federal =1 Cost Per Child - Local O Students Enrolled J




COST PER CHILD

PSS has increased its educational c¢ost per c¢hild to §5,357 in FY2003. The
Federal cosgt increased dramatically due to implementation of Title VI funding.
The Federal educational deollar in 2002 wag $1,600 per child, and in FY2003 it
increased to $2,046 per child. Title VI Federal dollars provided book
expenditures, new teachers, and general increases in the Federal contribution
in Special Education, and Food and Nutrition. Title VI funds also allowed large
dollar increases in the implementation of “No Child Left Behind” program in the
CNMI. Over one million dollars was spent in the upgrading of skills for our
teachers in the kindergarten through third grades.

Exhibit III - Academic Picture of the Public Schocl System

PSS Owverall Five-Year Performance
SATO Percentiles

The above chart shows that PSS students as a whole have improved their reading
level from the 21°° percentile in 1999 to the 28" percentile in 2003. PSS
expects with the increased Federal funding for *“No Child Left Behind” that the
yearly increases in percentile ranking will jump to an average of 4%, and that
by 2008 the average student will read at the 50" percentile.



Exhibit IV - Academic Picture of the Public School System

Percent At/Above 50th National Percentile Ranking
SATO Spring 2003

Grade # # J
Level | Tested) at/abowv
3 758 266
5 694 167
7 716 144
8 641 71
8 673 81
11 489 74

Grade Leveu

The Public School System has increased the reading level of all its students.
By 2008, its goal is to increase its reading level for 80% of its student body
to the 50" percentile. Currently, approximately 18% of PSS students read at the
50" percentile.

Consolidated Grants 2004

For FY2004, the Consolidated Federal Grant will be Title V funds. Title V funds
may not be used for the purchase of core textbocks, and for the payment of
substitute teachers. The textbook purchases and the payment of substitute
teachers amounted to over $2.7 million dollars. The academic integrity of the
school gystem will guffer if the Local portion of the educational dellar is not
increased.

Through the flexibility of Title VI funds, PSS increased the efficiency of not
only its early elementary gradesg, but also its entire system. Title V funds,
which were mandated to PSS in FY2004, are not as flexible ag Title VI funds,
and will not serve the needs of the system as easily.

Teacher Certification and “No Child Left Behind”
The Public School System has increased its reguirements for its teaching staff.

Except for a few vocational teachers, all teachers have Bachelor degrees. PSS
is working with Northern Marianas College to provide specific endorsements for
all teachers teaching out of their field. In approximately five vyears, all

teachers in the system will be teaching in their specialized field.



With the passage of the “No Child Left Behind” act (the largest educational
act ever passed in the USA), the Public School System will respond by
continuously upgrading all its staff and facilities and equipment.

Headstart and Special Education
The Headstart Program of the CNMI has been generously supported by Local
funds. New sites for Headstart Centers are donated by the CNMI government.
The majority of the operating and training costs have been supplied by
Federal funds. Headstart has been upgrading its support and teaching staff
to comply with Federal policies.

The Special Education costs are primarily funded with Federal funds, however
Local funds have been provided for teachers and teacher aides. The Special
Education Program is solvent, and provides the CNMI with the necessary
teachers and in addition provides the program with highly trained specialists
such as psychologists, audiologist, speech therapist, occupational and

physical therapists. Unfortunately, the retention rate for the related
specialists has not been favorable. This is due to the nationwide shortage
of the various specialists. The Public School System has requested the

legislature to allow PSS to hire non-US citizens to fill these positions,

Debt Outstanding
The Public School System does not record the debt associated with the Bond on

its balance sheet therefore, PSS has no Long-term debt, and it relies on the
CNMI government to finance any major Capital Expenditures.

Economic Factors

The Board anticipates an increased enrollment over the next several years and
will need continued increases in classroom space, teachers, and equipment.
Local funding is a major source of income for the Board therefore the CNMI
economic outlook directly affects that of the school system. The
Commonwealth two major industries, textiles and tourism have been facing
major challenges since 1998. The CNMI government has maintained and exceeded
its constitutional requirement of 15% of its total budget being appropriated
to PSS. It is impossible to predict the economic outlook of the CNMI, but
the Public School System has weathered a particularly bad storm over the last
five years without the massive layoffs and deficits of many of the states in
the Mainland. It has significantly increased its physical plant in spite of
the poor economy. It has continued to teach more students with the same
total payroll. Granted, the Federal funds have helped. However, the local
funds provide $33 million and the Federal provides approximately $23 million.
The Board, the Commissioner and the staff are aware of the economic pitfalls,
and are confident they will be able to navigate through these pitfalls for
the foreseeable future.

All of these factors, as well as the Commonwealth’s budget difficulties, were
considered in preparing the Board's budget for the 2004 fiscal year. The
Board's budget focused on a significant amount of repairs and maintenance,
and raising the salaries of teachers and staff, as PSS has not given step
increases for FY2002 and FY¥2003. Deferring needed maintenance on classrooms,
and not giving mandated step increases would seriously weaken PSS’ ability to
operate an efficient school system.

Reguestgs for Information

This report is intended to provide a summary of the financial condition of
the public School System of the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands
Questions or requests for additional information should be addressed to:
Richard Waldo, Director of Finance.

-10-



PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Statements of Net Assets
September 30, 2003 and 2002

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables from CHMI
Raceivables from Federal
Other receivables
Advances, net
Due from other funds

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital improvement projects in progress
Capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accrued payroll and others
Vouchers payable
Deferred revenue
Due to other funds
Other liabilities

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued leave liability

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Encumbrances
Capital improvement projects in progress
Unrestricted '

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities 2003 2002

$ 1,705,695 § - § 1,705,695 § 2,555,807
3,704,568 - 3,704,568 4,275,497
9gg,192 19,300 1,007,492 1,160,299
3,332 - 3,332 145,290
457,301 - 457,301 425,935
2,952,433 87,299 3,039,732 2,575,767
9,811,521 106,599 9,918,120 11,138,595
1,888,369 - 1,888,369 8,538,825
79,681,538 6,212 79,687,750 74,998,775
5 91,381,428 ] 112,811 $ 91,494,239 $ 94,676,195
$ 954,998 S 4,085 s 959,083 $ 2,836,990
8,015 - 8,015 75,023
149,295 19,300 168,595 303,066
2,865,356 3,244 2,868,600 2,575,767
166,324 - 166,324 35,564
4,143,988 26,629 4,170,617 5,826,410
4,151,264 - 4,151,264 3,733,077
8,295,252 26,629 8,321,881 9,559,487
79,681,538 6,212 79,687,750 74,998,775
8,048,616 103,606 8,152,222 4,784,396
1,888,369 - 1,888,369 8,511,378
(6,532,347) (23,636) (6,555,983) (3,177,841)
83,086,176 86,182 83,172,358 85,116,708
5 91,381,428 5 112,811 $ 91,494,239 5 94,676,195

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Functions/Programs

Governmental activites:

Instruction:
Regular
special sducatijon
Co-currisular
student services

Total instruction

Suppert services:
General administration
School administration
Other support
Community
Individual programs

Depreciaticn ~ unallocated
Total aupport services
Total governmental activities

Buslneds-type activitiess

Food services

Total business-type activities

Total schocl district

PUBLIC BCHODL SESTEM

Statemente of Activities

For the Years Ended September 30, 2003 and 2002

Program Revenues

Net (Expenses) Revenue
and Changes in Net Assets

Operating Business
Charges for Grants and Government TYype Total

Expenses Services Contributions Activities Activities 2003 2002
528,492,154 E} - % - § (28,492.154) § - §5(2B.492,154) §(27.088,692)
8,622,800 - 5,596,453 {3,026,347) - (3,026,347) (3,188,631}
98,192 - 98,192 - - - (469,583)
3,021,714 = 9,031,356 9,642 = — -
46,234,860 - 14,726,001 (31,508,859} - (31,518,501) (30,746,306}
1,655,791 - 1,363,858 (291,931) - {291,933) {529,811)
4,606,253 - 308,419 (4,297,834) - (4,297,834) (4.129,247)
1,043,434 - - (1,043,434 - (1,043,434 (1,520,305)
2,630,128 - 2,630,128 - - - 65,424
685,594 - - (685,584) - (6B5,584) (899,792)
2,030,013 - - (2,030,013} - (2,030,013} (1,142,119
12,651,203 - 4,302,405 (9,348,798) - (8,348,794} (8,155,749}
58,886,063 - 19,028,406 [39,857,657) - (39,857,657) (39,902,655)
4,486,857 116,152 4,464,214 - 93,511 93,511 51,490
$63,372,920 $ 116,152 § 23,492,622 (39,857,657) 93,511 (39,764,146) {38,851,165)
Unrestricted CNMI appropriations 37,794,725 - 37,794,725 36,830,342
Miscellanecus, unrestricted 25,071 — 25,071 943,255
Subtotal, general revenues 37,819,794 - 37,819,796 317,773,597
Changes in Net Assets (2,037,961) 93,511 {1,944,350) {1,077,568)
Net assets — beglnning 85,124,037 (7,329) 45,116,708 46,194,276

Net assets - ending

$ 83,086,176

5 B6,182 $ 83,172,358

5 85,116,708

See accompanying notes to fipancial atatements.
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-

SSETS

ASSETS!

Cash and cash eguivalents
Receivables from CHMIT
Receivables from Federal
other receivables
Advances, net

pue from other funds

Capital improvement
projects in progress

TOTHRL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND

FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:

Accrued payroll and others
Vouchers payable

Deferred ravenucs

pue to other funds

other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances
Unresgerved:
Capital Improvement projects
undesignated

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES

PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Balance Sheets
Governmental Funds

September 30, 2003 and 2002

-13-

Total net assets - governmental activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

General Capital Non-major Total Governmental Funds
Fund Projects Fund Fuands 2003 2002
1,705,695 $ - - 1,705,695 3 2,555,807
3,687,250 - - 3,687,250 4,260,758
- - 1,605,510 1,005,510 1,002,805
3,891 - 279,766 283,657 145,290
177,535 - - 177,535 425,935
499,936 - 2,339,060 2,838,996 2,575,767
6,074,307 - 3,624,336 9,698,643 10,966,362
- 1,888,369 - 1,888,369 8,538,825
5,074,307 $ 1,888,368 3,624,336 11,587,012 $ 19,505,187
954,398 $ - - 954,998 $ 2,832,905
- - 352 352 75,023
- - 555,829 555,829 130,833
732,983 - 149,854 882,837 2,572,523
1,471,382 - 165,712 1,637,094 35,564
3,159,363 - 871,747 4,031,110 5,646,848
778,801 ~ 7,269,815 B,04B,616 4,602,573
- 1,888,369 - 1,888,369 8,511,378
2,136,143 — (4,517,226} {2,381,083) 744,388
2,136,143 1,888,369 (4,517,226) (492,714} 9,255,766
2,914,944 1,388,369 2,752,589 7,555,902 13,858,339
6,074,307 $ 1,888,369 3,624,336
Capital assets used in govermmental activities
are nrot financial rescurces and therefore are
not reported as assets in governmental funda.
The cost of capital assets is 86,358,411
Accumulated depreciation is 6,676,873 79,681,538 74,998,775
Long-term Eiability that are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore
are not reported as liabilities in the funds.
Long-term at year-end pertains to:
annual leave liability (4,151,264) (3,733,077)

43,086,176 5

85,124,037




PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

REVENUES:
Federal
Other Local

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
Current operations:
Instructional programs:
Regular
Special
Co~curricular
student services

Supporting sexvices:
General administration
School administration
Individual programs
Other

community services

Capital QOutlay:
Equipment & Vehicles

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES}):
Operating transfers in

EACESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
AND OTHER FINANCINRG SOURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES

(INCREASE) DECREASE IN RESERVE
FOR ENCUMBRANCES

CURRENT YEAR RESTATEMENTS

UNRESERVED FUND BALANCE,
beginning of year

UNRESERVED FUND BALANCE,
end of year

RESERVE FOR ENCUMBRANCES

FUND BALANCE, end of the year

Governmental Funds
For the ¥Years Ended September 30, 2003 and 2002

General Capital Non-Major Total Governmental Funds
Fund Projects Fund Funds 2003 2002
§ - 3 89,767 § 17,762,471 17,852,238 § 11,508,126
25,071 — 1,265,935 1,291,006 2,201,155
25,071 89,767 19,028,406 19,143,244 13,709,281
28,492,154 - - 28,492,154 27,088,692
3,106,472 - 5,596,453 8,702,925 7,087,927
- - 98,192 98,192 725,301
- — 9,031,356 9,031,356 4,445,784
31,598,626 — 14,726,001 46,324,627 39,347,704
260,295 - 1,309,645 1,569,940 2,095,798
4,297,834 - 308,419 4,606,253 4,820,095
685,584 - - 685,584 899,792
1,129,285 — —~ 1,129,285 1,520,307
6,372,998 — 1,619,064 7,991,062 9,335,992
- - 2,630,128 2,630,128 1,842,867
- 89,767 - 89,767 840,195
37,971,624 89,767 18,974,193 57,035,584 51,366,758
(37,946,553) - 54,213 (37,892,340} (37,657,477)
37,794,725 {6,623,009) - 31,171,716 36,830,342
{151,828} {6,623,009) 54,213 (6,720,624) (827,135)
171,521 - (3,601,453) (3,429,932) 238,226
402,076 - - 402,076 -
1,714,374 8,511,378 (369,986) 9,255,766 9,844,675
2,136,143 1,888,369 (4,517,226) (492,714) 9,255,766
778,801 - 7,269,815 8,048,616 4,602,573
$ 2,914,944 § 1,888,369 $ 2,752,589 7,555,902 $ 13,858,339

See accompanying notes to fipancial statements.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balance with the District-wide Statement of Activities
For the Years Ended September 30, 2003 and 2002

2003 2002
Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds 3 (6,720,624} $ (827,135)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities ig different because:
capital outlays to purchase or build capital assets are reported
in governmental funds as expenditures., However, for
governmental activities those costs are shown in the statement
of net assets and allocated over their estimated useful lives
as annual depreciation expense in the statement of activities.
This is the amount by which capital outlays exceed
depreciation in the period.
Capital outlays 5 6,712,776
Depreciation expense (2,030,013) 4,682,763 (301,923)
Changes in net assets of governmental activities 5 {2,037,861) § (1,129,058)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SY¥STEM

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget {GAAP Basis) and Actual - General Fund
For the Year Ended September 30, 2003

REVENUES
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current operations:
Instructional programs:
Regular
Special
Co-curricular

Supporting services:
General administration
School administration
Individual programs
Other

Total expenditures

Deficiency of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources :
operating transfers in

Deficiency of revenues
and other financing sources
over expenditures and other
financing uses

Other change in fund balance:
Reserve for encumbrances

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year

FUND BALANCE, end of year

General Fund

Variance

Favorable
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)
- 5 25,071 25,071
- 25,071 25,071
28,192,780 28,492,154 (299,374)
2,887,904 3,106,472 {218,568)
353,299 260,295 93,004
4,207,111 4,297,834 (90,723)
701,836 685,584 16,252
866,998 1,129,285 (262,287)
37,209,928 37,971,624 (761,696}
(37,209,928)  (37,946,553) {736,625)
37,209,928 36,830,342 (379,586)
- {1,116,211) (1,116,211)
- 16,020 16,020
- 6,388,183 6,388,183
- § 5,287,992 5,287,992

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

General Fund
Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Year Ended September 30, 2003
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002)

2003 2002
Variance
Favorahle
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
REVENUES $ - § 25,071 % 25,071 $ 943,255
Total revenues - 25,071 25,071 943,255
EXPENDITURES:
Current operations:
Instructional programs:
Regular 28,192,780 28,492,154 (299,374) 27,088,692
special 2,887,904 3,106,472 (218,568) 3,188,631
Co-curricular - - - 469,583
supporting services:
teneral administration 353,299 260,295 93,004 763,906
School administration 4,207,111 4,297,834 (90,723) 4,129,147
Individual programs 701,836 685,584 16,252 899,792
Other 866,998 1,129,285 (262,287) 1,520,307
Total expenditures 37,209,928 37,971,624 {761,696} 38,060,058
Deficiency of revenues
over expenditures (37,209,928) {37,946,553) {736,625) {37,116,803)
other financing sources :
Operating transfers in ' 37,209,928 36,830,342 {379,586) 36,830,342
Deficiency of revenues
and other financing sources
over expenditures and other
financing uses - (1,116,211) (1,116,211) {286,461)
other change in fund balance:
Reserve for encumbrances - 16,020 16,020 16,020
FUND BALANCE, beginning of year - 6,388,183 6,388,183 6,658,624

5 5,287,892 $ 5,287,992 $ 6,388,183

R
|

FUND BALANCE, end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Statements of Net Assets

Enterprise Funds - Food and Nutrition Program

September 30,

ASSETS

Current assets:
Due from grantor agencies
Due from other funds

Total current assets

Capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accrued payroll and others
Deferred revenue
Due to other £funds

Total current liabilities

NET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets
Reserved for encumbrances
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2003 and 2002

2003 2002
19,300 172,233
87,299 -

106,599 172,233
6,212 -
112,811 172,233
4,085 4,085
19,300 172,233
3,244 3,244
26,629 179,562
6,212 -
103,606 -
(23,636) (7,329)
86,182 (7,329)
112,811 172,233

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Enterprise Funds - Food and Nutrition Program
For the ¥ears Ended September 30, 2003 and 2002

2003 2002
OPERATING REVENUES
Food sales $ - -
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES - -
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Business supporting services:
Salaries 253,604 339,778
Supplies 204,361 - 252,962
Contractual services 3,878,702 3,343,769
4,336,667 3,936,509
Other supporting services:
Employee benefits 69,356 90,657
Indirect costs 80,834 55,566
150,190 146,223
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 4,486,857 4,082,732
OPERATING LOSS (4,486,857) (4,082,732)
NON~OFPERATING REVENUES:
Federal regular USDA grants 4,464,216 4,073,537
Miscellaneous 116,152 60,685
TOTAL NON-OPERATING
REVENUES 4,580,368 4,134,222
NET INCOME 93,511 51,490
NET ASSETS, beginning of year . {(7,329) (58,819)
NET ASSETS, end of year 5 86,182 g (7,329)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Cash flows
Payments
Payments
Payments

PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Statements of Cash flows

Enterprise Funds -~ Food and Nutrition Program
For the Years Ended September 30, 2003 and 2002

from operating activities:

to employees for services

to suppliers for goods and services
for other operating expenses

¥et cash used in operating activities

Cash flows

from non-capital financing activities:

Federal regular USDA grants

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities

Cash flows

from investing activities:

Capital expenditures
Interest income

Wet cash provided by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash egquivalents, beginning of year

cash and cash equivalents, end of year

2003 2002
(253,604) {339,778)
(4,083,063) (3,596,731)
{236,601) (197,713)
(4,573,268) (4,134,222)
4,464,216 4,073,537
4,464,216 4,073,537
(7.100) -
116,152 60,685
109,052 60,685

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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ASSETS

Due from grantor agencies
Other receivables
Due from other funds

LIABILITIES AND FUND BATANCES

Liabilities:
vouchers payable
Deferred Revenue
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Fund balances (defiecit):
Reserved for sncumbrances
Unreserved

Total fund balances

PUBLIC SCHOOL SY¥STEM

Combining Balance Sheet - NWon-major Funds

September 30,

2003 and 2002

Federal TLooal CNMI Indirect
Granta Donations Grants Costs Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund 2003 2002
$ 9g98,1%2 § 2,579 $ 14,739 % - 8 1,005,310 § 1,002,805
279,766 - - - 279,766 230,251
- 615,747 247,588 1,475,725 2,339,060 2,071,353
S 1,267,358 & 618,326 5 262,327 § 1,475,725 % 3,624,336 3 3,304,409
) 352 § - 5 - 8 - 8 352 § 47,576
- 12,3173 - 137,681 149,854 63,908
721,541 - - = 721,541 501,170
721,893 12,173 - 137,681 871,747 612,554
7,184,789 85,026 - - 7,269,815 3,661,841
[6,638,724) 521,127 262,327 1,338,044 (4,517,226) (969,986}
546,065 606,153 262,327 1,338,044 2,752,589 2,691,855
§ 1,267,958 § 618,326 & 262,327 8§ 1,475,725 § 3,624,336 § 3,304,409

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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PUBLIC BCHOOL SYSTEM

combining Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Non-major funds
For the Years Ended September 30, 2003 and 2002

Federal Local CNMI Indirect Total
Grantcs Donations Grants Costs Non-major funds
Fund Fund Fund Fund 2003 2002
REVENUES:
Federal § 17,762,471 § - % - 8 - & 17,762,471 § 1,517,321
gther local - 537,496 - 728,439 1,265,935 1,257,900
TOTAL REVENUES 17,762,471 537,496 - 729,439 14,028,406 12,775,221
EXPENDITURES:
Current operations:
Instructional programs:
Regular - - - - - -
Special 5,596,453 - - - 5,396,453 3,899,296
Co-gurricular 98,192 - - - 98,192 ’ 255,718
Student services 9,031,356 - - - 9,031,356 4,445,784
14,726,001 — = = 14,726,001 B,600,798
Supporting services:
Genaral adminiatration 97,923 476,234 - 735,489 1,309,645 1,331,892
Schaool administration 08,419 - - - 308,419 690,948
Individual programs - - - - - -
Other - - - - - -
406,342 476,234 - 735,488 1,618,064 2,022,840
Community services 2,630,128 - - - 2,630,128 1,842,867
Capital Outlay:
Equiprment & vehicles - — - - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 17,762,471 476,234 - 735,488 18,974,153 12,466,505
BRCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENWUES
OVER EXPENDITURES - 61,262 - (7,049} 54,213 308,716
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
operating transfers in - - - - - -
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
AND OTHER FINANCING SCURCES
QVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES - 61,262 - (7,049} 54,213 308,716
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN RESERVE
FOR ENCUMBRANCES {3,577,149) (24,304) - - (3,601,453} 222,206
FUND BALANCE, beginning of year (3,061,575} 484,169 262,327 1,345,093 {969,986) {1,500,908)
FUND BALANCE, end of year $ (6,638,724) § 521,127 & 262,327 $ 1,338,044 § (4,517,226) § {969,986)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2003 and 2002

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Public School System (PSS), a component unit of the Commonwealth of the
Northern Mariana Islands (CNMI), was established as a public non-profit
corporation by +the CHNMI Public Law 6-10 (The Education Act of 1988),
effective October 25, 1988, and began coperations on October 1, 1988.

PSS financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of BAmerica. The
Governmental  Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for
establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements
(Statements and Interpretations).

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) unanimously
approved Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments. Certain of the
significant changeg in the Statement include the following:

e For the first time the financial statements include:

1. A Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section providing an
analysis of the PSS’ overall financial position and results of
operations.

2. Financial statements prepared using full accrual accounting for all
of the School System's activities, including infrastructure.

¢ A change in the fund financial statements to focus on the major funds.

A. Reporting Entity

PSS, as the state educational agency for pre-schoel, elementary and secondary
educations programs in the CNMI is under the direction of the Board of
Education (BOE), which consists of five voting members elected at-large on a
nonpartisan basis: one from Rota, one from Tinian, and three from Saipan.
The Commissioner of Education, who is appointed by the Board of Education, is
responsible for administering the PSS in accordance with applicable laws and

Board policies,

Pursuant to CNMI Constitutional Amendment 38, the public education school
system is guaranteed an annual budget of not less than fifteen percent of the
general revenues of the CNMI Government. This budgetary appropriation may
not bhe reprogrammed for other purposes, and any unencumbered fund balance at
the end of a fiscal year shall be available for reappropriation.

B, Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements: The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of
Activities present information about PSS, These statements include the
overall financial activities of the school system. Eliminations have been
made to minimize the effect of internal activities upon revenues and
expenses.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2003 and 2002

(1) Ssummary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

B. Basis of Presentation, Continued

These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type
activities of PSS. Governmental activities generally are financed through
intergovernmental revenues and other non-exchange transactions.

Business type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to
external parties.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for the different business-type activities of PSS and for
each function of PSS’ governmental activities. Direct expenses are those
that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore,
are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense
allocations that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the
statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid
by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs; and (b}
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not
clagsified as program revenues are presented as general revenues.

PSS uses funds and an account g¢group to report on its financial position and
the results of its operations in conformity with standards of fund basis
accounting for local governments promulgated by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB).

Fund Financial Statements: B fund is defined as an independent fiscal and
accounting entity, with a self-balancing sets of accounts, recording cash
and/or other financial resources together with all related liabilities and
residual equities and balances, and changes therein which are segregated for
the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain
objectives in accordance with the fund’'s special regulations, restrictionsg or
limitations. The fund financial statements provide information about the PSS
funds. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental
and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column.

PSS reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - Accounts for all financial resources except for those
required to be accounted for in another fund. The General Fund is PSS’
major operating fund.

Capital Project Fund - Accounts for financial resources to be used for
the acquisition or construction of all major governmental projects,

Non-major Funds — Account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
(other than expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are
legally restricted to expenditure for specified purposes. This was
previously reported as Special Revenue Funds.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2003 and 2002

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

B. Basis of Pregentation, Centinued

The Commissioner of Education has directed that indirect costs of the
general fund expended for federal grant activity be accounted for in
non-major fund and be used for particular programs and activities.

PSS reports the following major enterprise fund:

Food and Nutrition Assistance Program - The Food and Nutrition Program is
used to account for the food service program within the school system.

C. Meagsurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to the timing of recognition, that is, when
revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the
financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the
measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statementsg

Both governmental and business type activities in the statement of net assets
are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related
cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which PSS gives (or
receives) wvalue without directly receiving (or giving) equal wvalue in
exchange, include grants and donations. Revenue from grants and donations is
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been
satisfied.

Government Fund Financial Statements

The governmental funds financial statements are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when susceptible to
accrual (i.e., when they become both measurable and available). *“Measurable”
means the amount of the transaction can be determined and *“available” means
collectible within the current period or scon enough thereafter to be used to
pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the
related liability is incurred.

Revenues from other sources are recognized when received. Expenditures are
generally recognized in the fiscal year the goods or services are received
and the related fund liability is incurred. Debt service expenditures for
principal interest on general long-term obligations are recognized when due
unless resources have been provided for payment early in the subsequent
fiscal year. Prepaid items and inventory purchases are reported as current
fiscal year expenditures, rather than allocating cost to the fiscal year when
items are used.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2003 and 2002

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued
¢. Measurement Focus and Bagis of Accounting, Continued

Expenditures for claims, Jjudgments, compensated absences and employer
retirement contributions are reported as the amount accrued during the fiscal
year that normally would be liguidated with expendable available financial
resources. Budgetary encumbrances are not reported as expenditures.

Under the terms of grant agreements, PSS funds certain programs by a
combination of specific cost-reimbursement grants and general revenues.
Thus, when program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and
unrestricted net assets available to finance the program.

2ll governmental and business-type activities and enterprise funds of the
Board follow FASB Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November
30, 1989, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research
Bulleting, unless those pronouncements conflict with GASB prenouncements.

PSS has implemented GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and
Managements Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments and
related standards. These new standards provide for significant changes in
terminology and presentation and for the inclusion of Management's Discussion
and Analysis as required supplementary information.

D. Budgetary Data

PSS has no authority to impose taxes to generate revenue. PSS is a dependent
school district as revenue and expenditure authorizations come from the CNMI
Legislature. The CNMI legislative budgets are adopted on a basis consistent
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. An annual appropriated budget is adopted by the Legislature for PSS
through an Annual Appropriations Act. Budgets for non-major funds are not
included in the annual appropriation act. Budgets for these funds are based
upon grant awards received (and are thus non-appropriated). Project-length
financial plans are adopted for all capital project funds.

E. Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Eguity

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

PSS pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and
investments to maximize investment income. Therefore, all cash and
investments are essentially demand deposits and are considered cash and
cash equivalents.

2. Capital Assets

PSS¢ capital assets are recorded at original cost. Donated assets are
recorded at their estimated fair wvalue at the date of donation or
forfeiture. Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the
remaining useful lives of the related capital assets.

w26



I

PUBLIC SCHQOL SYSTEM

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2003 and 2002

{13y Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

E. Assets, TLiabilitjeg, and Fund Eguity, Continued

2., Capital Assets, Continued

Ccapital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or
more are reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost.
Contributed assets are reported at fair market wvalue as of the date
received. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that
significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other
costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis over
the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 20-50 years
Vehicles 8 years
Others 8 years

3. Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide £financial statements, long-term debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities.

4. Compengated Absences

vested or accumulated vacation leave that is expected to be liguidated
with expendable available financial resources is reported as an
expenditure and a fund liability of the governmental fund that will pay
it. Amounts of vested or accumulated vacation leave that are not
expected to be ligquidated with expendable available financial resources
are reported as a non-current liability. The liability as of September
30, 2003 and 2002 were $4,151,264 and $3,733,077, respectively. No
expenditure is reported for these amounts. No liability is recorded for
non-vesting accumulating rights to receive sick pay benefits.

An employee cannot carry over to the following calendar year accumulated
annual leave in excess of three hundred sixty (360} hours. However, any
annual leave accumulated in excess of 360 hours as of the end of the
calendar year can be converted to sick leave on the last day of such
calendar year.

5. Net Assets/Fund Balances

Net assets in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements are classified as invested in capital assets, net of related
debt, restricted, and unrestricted. Restricted net assets represent
constraints on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of federal agencies,
or imposed by law through state statute.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2003 and 2002

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

®. Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity, Continued

5. Net Assets/Fund Balancesg, Continued

In the governmental fund financial statements, reservations or
restrictions of fund balance represents amounts that are not
appropriable, are legally segregated for a specific purpose, or are
restricted by the grant agreement. Designations of fund balance
represent tentative management plans that are subject teo change.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:

Reserved for encumbrances — portion of fund balance available to pay for
any commitments related to purchase orders and contracts that remain

unperformed at year-end.

Unreserved — portion of total fund balance available for appropriation,
which is uncommitted at year-end.

(2) Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance
sheet and the government-wide statement of net assets.

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund
balance — total governmental funds and net assets — governmental activities
as reported in the government-wide statement of net assets. The net
adjustments for 2003 and 2002 consists of several elements as follows:

Description 2003 2002

Capital assets used in governmental
activities are not financial resources and
are therefore not reported in the funds
(total capital assets on government-wide
statement in governmental activities column) $ 86,358,411 $ 79,645,635
less accumulated depreciation { 6,676,873) { 4,646,860)

Wet capital assets 79,681,538 74,998,775

Liabilities that, because they are not due
and payable in the current period, do not
require current resources to pay and are
therefore not recorded in the fund

statements:
Annual leave liability (_4,151,264) { 3,733,077)

Total adjustment $.75,530,274 § 71,265,698
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PUBLIC SCHOQL SYSTEM

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2003 and 2002

(23 Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements,
Continued

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund

statement of revepues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance and the
government-wide statement of activities

The governmental statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances -—
total governmental funds and changes in net assets of governmental activities
as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. The total
adijustments of 2003 and 2002 pertains to the following:

Description 2003 2002
Capital outlay expenditures recorded in the
Statement of activities. % 6,712,776 $ 840,195

Depreciation expense, the allocation of those
assets over their useful lives, that is
recorded on the statement of activities but

not in the fund statements. { 2,030,013) ( 1,142,118)
Total adjustments $ 4,862,763 (S 301,923)

{3) Detail Notes on ail Funds

Cash

For purposes of the balance sheets, cash is defined as amounts in demand
deposits as well as short-term investments with a maturity date within three
months of the date acquired. As of September 30, 2003 and 2002, the total
amounts deposited with FDIC banks were $1,082,579 and 2,555,807,
respectively. From these deposits, $687,664 in 2003 and $663,893 in 2002
were subject to coverage by FDIC with the remaining balance excesding
insurable limits. PSS does not reguire collateralization of bank accounts,
and therefore, amounts in excess of insurable limits are uncollateralized.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL S5YSTEM

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2003 and 2002

{3) Detail Notes on_all Funds, Continued

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are amounts due primarily from the CNMI government and
from Federal grantor agencies.

Receivables at the government-wide level at September 30, 2003 and 2002, are
as follows:

Accounts receivable - September 30, 2003

Due from other

Funds (Intermnal Accounts
Balances) Receivable Other

Governmental activities:

General Fund

Other governmental ] 2,838,996 $ 3,687,250 $ 1,005,510

activities 1,888,369 - -

Total $§ 4,840,802 $__3,687,250  $.1.005,510
Business-type activities:

School Food services s = 5 = 5 19,300

Accounts receivable — September 30, 2002

bue from other

Funds (internal Accounts
Balances) Receivable Other

Governmental activities:

General Fund

other governmental $ 2,575,767 $ 4,260,758 $ 1,002,805

activities : 8,538,825 - =

Total 5 11,114,592 § 4,260,758 $_ 1,002,805
Business-type activities:

School Food services s = S = $ 172,233

Travel Advances

The Board of Bducation’s policy considers travel advances as loan to the
traveler until proper reconciliation of approved travel expenses has been
authorized. Travel advances are liquidated upon submission of regquired travel
documents in accordance with PSS’ policy.

Travel advances are reported net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of
$98,577 and 119,219 at September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2003 and 2002

(3) Detail Notes on all Funds, Continued

Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2003 and 2002 were as
follows:

Beginning BEnding
Governmental activities = ~ _balances = _Increases = Retirement = __balances
Capital agset not being depreciated:
Land 6,647,850 $ - s bl 36,64 30
Total capital assets not
being depreciated: 36,647,850 - = 36,647,850
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 39,367,284 6,623,009 - 45,990,293
Vehicles 2,845,464 - - 2,845,464
Others 785,037 96,867 - 881,904
Total capital assets being
depreciated 42,997,785 6,719,876 = 49,717,661
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 3,348,575 919,806 - 4,268,381
Vehicles 902,836 906,895 - 1,809,731
Others 395,449 204,200 = 599,649
Total accumulated
depreciation 4,646,860 2,030,901 - 6.677,761
Total capital assets
being depreciated,
net 38,350,925 4,688,975 = 43,039,900
Governmental activity capital
assets, net £74,.998, 775 $ 4,688,973 - $72.687,750

Retirement Plan

PSS contributes to the Northern Mariana Islands Retirement Fund (NMIRF), a
defined benefit, cost-sharing multi-employer pension plan established and
administered by the CNMI. NMIRF provides retirement, security and other
benefits to employees of the CNMI |Ggovernment and CNMI agencies,
instrumentalities and public corporations, and +to their spouses and
dependents. Benefits are based on the average annual salary over the term of
credited service. Generally, benefits vest after three years of credited
service. PFor early retirement, after 10 years of vesting service and members
is at least 52 years of age. Members, who retire at or after age 60, or with
25 vyears of vesting service, are entitled to retirement benefits. CHMI
Public Law 6-17, the Northern Mariana Islands Retirement Fund Act of 1988, is
the authority under which benefit provisions are established.

As a result of the Fund’s actuarial valuation report (as of October 1, 2002),
it has been determined that for the year ended September 30, 2003, the
funding requirement for employer is 39.4331% of covered payvroll, and funding
requirements for employees are 6.5% and 9.0% of covered payroll for Class I
and Class II members, respectively.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2003 and 2002

{3) Detail Notes on all Funds, Continued

Retirement Plan, Continued

The funding requirement is calculated as that percentage of total payroll,
which is necessary to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due.
The Fund uses the level percentage of payroll method to amortize the unfunded
liability over a period not to exceed 40 years from October 1980.
Significant actuarial assumptions used to compute contribution reguirements
are the same as those uszed to compute the pension benefit obligation.

The Fund utilizes the actuarial cost method termed “entry age normal cost”
with actuarial assumptions used to compute the pension benefit obligation as
follows: (a) a rate of return of 7.5% per year on the investment of present
and future assets, (b) a 5% increase in employee salaries compounded annually
until retirement, (¢) expenses at 1.1% of total payroll, and (d) retirement
age of the earlier of age 62 and 3 years of vesting service (not including 5
additional years granted after 20 years of service) for Class I or age 60 and
25 years of service for Class II members (including 5 additional years
granted after 20 years of gervice).

Required contributions and the percentage actually contributed for the
current year and for the preceding two years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Required Percentage of Regquired
Ended Contribution Contribution Contributed
9/30/03 $ 7,985,986 100%
9/30/02 6,090,507 100%
9/30/01 7,261,530 100%

Medical and life ingurance benefits

In addition to providing pension benefits, the CNMI Government also ensures
that employees are provided with medical and life insurance benefits. The
CNMI Government created the Group Health and Life Insurance Trust Fund
(“Trust Fund”), held in trust and administered by the ©Northern Mariana
Islands Retirement Fund (NMIRF). PSS contributes to the Group Health and
Life Insurance program. This is open to active employees who work at least
20 hours per week and retired CNMI government employees who retire as a
result of length of service, disability or age, as well as their dependents.
Further, these eligible persons must have elected to enroll during the period
permitted in the Emergency Regulations adopted on September &, 1996. Life
insurance coverage is to be provided by a private carrier. Contributions
from employees and employers are based on rates as determined by NMIRF Board
of Trustees. Employee deductions are made through payroll or pension benefit
withholdings.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2003 and 2002

{(3) Detail Notes on &l] Funds, Continued

Grants

Federal grants and assistance awards from various federal agencies made on
the basis of entitlement pericds are recorded as revenues when entitlement
occurs. Federal reimbursement-type grants are recorded as revenues when the
related expenditures or expenses are incurred.

Trangfer in from CNMI Government

In accordance with Public Law 10-34, the CNMI government appropriated
$36,465,730 and $37,230,342 for PSS‘s operational use for the year ended
September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The amount actually received in
cash and/or sgervices was $37,002,611 in 2003 and 536,830,342 in 2002, The
receivable balances at September 30, 2003 and 2002 were $4,260,758 and
$3,684,404, respectively.

Non-major funds

Specific revenues earmarked to finance particular program and activities of
the Public School System are accounted for in Special Revenue Funds. A
summary of P3S‘s Non-major Funds as of September 30, 2003 and 2002 follows:

Federal Grants Fund - This fund accounts for activities pertaining to
federal operations grants. The primary revenue
source of +this fund is grant awards from
various federal agencies.

This fund accounts for activities pertaining to
local donations received for specific purposes.
The primary revenue source of this fund is

Local Donations Fund

donations from private individuals or
organizations.
CNMT Grants Fund - This fund was established +to account for

projects that were appropriated without fiscal
year limitation by Public Law 8-2.

Indirect Costs Fund ~ This fund, established through directive of the
PSS Commigsioner of Education, accounts for
indirect cost of PSS related to federal grants.

{4) Contingencies

PSS administers significant financial assistance from the Federal government
in the form of grants and entitlements. Receipt of grants is generally
conditioned upon compliance with terms and conditions of the grant agreements
and applicable federal regulations, including expenditure of resources for
eligible purposes. Substantially, all grants are subject to either the
Single Audit Act or to financial and compliance audits by the grantor
agencies of the Federal government or their designees.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2003 and 2002

(4} Contingencies, Continued

For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2003 and 2002, expenditures in the
amount of $121,628 has been questioned as a result of Single Audits in fiscal
years 1997 through 1998.

Disallowances and sanctions as a result of these audits may become
liabilities of PSS and the general fund would be liable for the return of
such funds. However, no liability which may arise from the ultimate outcome
of this matter has been provided for in +the accompanying financial
statements.

PSS is a defendant in a several legal lawsuits that pertains to the
following:

1. Tano Group, Tnc v. the Public Schopl System

This is a construction dispute over Tano Group, Inc.’s construction
of the Sinapalo elementary school on the island of Rota. A summary
judgement was issued against the Public School System but no
decision has yet been issued on the amount. Both parties are
negotiating a final dollar amount. The financial terms of the
settlement are subject to a confidentiality agreement; however, the
settlement will not have a material effect on PS8’ financial
condition or results of operations. More than half of +the
settlement amount will be paid by federal and bond Ffunds already
designated for the project.

2. Darcie Duepas v. Myung B. Chua and the Public School System

This is a personal injury case filed by a student injured by a car
at San Antonio elementary school. This case was filed against PSS
in September 2003. An assessment is not yet complete. PSS intends
to vigorously defend itself in the case, but if a settlement is
reached, the reasonable estimate of the loss is not expected to have
a material effect on PSS’ financial statements.

3. Century Insurance Company v. Guerrerg Brothers, Inc and PSS,

This is a construction lawsuit regarding the construction of the
Tinian High School. An assessment by the current PSS Legal Counsel
of the liability surrounding this case is not complete. PSS intends
to vigorously contest liability to any of the remaining parties and
believes the likelihood of loss is remote,

(5) Commitments

In June 1997, CNMI House Joint Resolution No. 10-36 authorized PSS to issue
general obligation bonds for a total value not to exceed $15,685,000. These
bonds shall be used to leverage an equal amount of federal capital
improvement project funds to finance school construction projects, and will
be repaid by the CNMI Government through appropriation of liquid fuel taxes
per Public Law 11-14. The liability relating tc these bonds will be recorded
by the CNMI Government. :
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Federal Grants Fund
Year Ended September 30, 2003

Receivable Receivable
From From
Grantor Grantor
Program (Deferred Cash {Deferred
Federal Grantor/Program/ 0rg, or Award Revenue) at Recelipts Expenditures Revenue) at
Title/Federal CFDA Number No. Amount 09/30/02 Adjustments FY 03 FY 03 0%3/30/03
U.B. Department of Education
Direct Programs
CFDRE 84,3303
Advance Placement Frogram 0157 $ 107,460 3 1 § 300 $ {937) $ 237 5 301
advance Placement Program 0257APPZ - - 16,684 {86,267) 86,267 16,684
Advance Placement Program 0357AP3RFPP - - 38,843 {58,908) 58,908 38,843
Subtotal CFDA# 84.3304 3 107,460 5 1 ] 55,827 $ {146,112 3 146,112 $ 55,828
CFDA# 84,1340
Bilingual Data - SEA 0272BTL2 $ 100,000 $ (293} § 293 $ - § - s -
Technical Assistant Section 11 0273BIL2 = 3,640 {3,640} = - -
Subtotal CFDA# 84.1%40Q g 100,000 3 31,347 s (3,347} ] - 3 - 5 —
Crpoad 84.318X
Technology LEA C059AD01 g - $ 5,438 H - $ - $ - 5 5,438
Technelogy SER 0158 - {798) 798 - - -
Technology LEA 0159 - (5,844) 406 - - (5,438
Technology LEA 0159AL01 - 531 {631) {2,859} 2,859 -
Technelogy LEA 015%A501 - 558 {558) - - -
Technology LE& 015%9A502 - 16 (16} - - -
Technology LERA 01590801 - - - {5,496) 5,496 -
Technology LEA D1S9EBO2 - 11,787 (11,797) - - -
Technology LBA 0159JM01 - - - {5,708) 5,708 -
Technology LEA 0159RLOL - 4,112 {4,112) - - -
Subtotal CFDA# 84.318x S = 3 15,918 ) [15,910) 3 [14,063) $ 14,063 g =
CFD. 8 76,
Geals 2000-1 SEA 2962 H - $ 167 [ - $ - § - $ 167
Goals 2000-LEA 29631EW2 - 292 - - - 299
Goals 2000-LEA 2963PT - (6,423} - - - (6,423)
Goals 2000-1LEA 2963EM - 2,135 - - - 2,135
Goala 2000-LEA 2963pT2 - 3,822 - - - 3,822
Goala 2000-1 SEA 0os2 - 565 {565) - - -
Goals 2000 - LEA 0063 - 2,189 {2,18%) - - -
Goals 2000 -~ LEA J063E01 - 2,114 {2,174} (244) 244 -
Goals 2000 - LEA 0063FHL - 178 (178) (4,958) 4,958 -
Goals 2000 - LEA U0B3IFTL - 478 {475) - - -
Gecals 2000 - LEA d063GB1 - 7,321 {7,321} (291) 291 -
Goals 2000 - LEA 0063HM1 - 7,600 (7,600} (4,B24) 4,824 -
Goals 2000 - LEA Q063IVE - B,223 (8,223} (446} 446 -
Goals 2000 - LEA 0063KFL - 130 (130} (3,212) 3,212 -
Goals 2000 - LEA 0063LBL - 1,373 (1,373} - - -
Goala 2000 - LEA DO&3IMGL - 287 {287) - - -
Goals 2000 « LEA G083INN1 - 162 {162) - - -
Goals 2000 - LEA 0063TS1 - 40 (40) {2,084) 2,084 -
Subtotal CPFDA¥ 84.276A $ - $ 30,717 S (30,717) 5 (16,059) 8 16,059 3 —~
CFDa#¥ B84.9223
CG - T6 Northern Marianas Academy 0012B9 5 4,868,486 $ (2 5 - 5 - 5 - s (9}
Strategies 1 - SE CLlO1SE - 1 {1) - - -
Strategies 1 - 87 alolsT - 246,238 (246,238} - - -
Strategies 1 - PI 0103PI - 1 (1) - - -
Strategiea 4 - Staff Development 01048D - (1) 1 - - -
DF - Dandan Elementary Schocl 0107401 - 1 (1) - - —
Total 4,868,486 246,231 (246,240} - - _{9)
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Federal Grants Fund
Year Ended September 30, 2003

Receivable Receivable
From From
Grantor Grantor
Program (Deferred Cash (Deferred
Federal Grantor/Program/ org. or Asrard Revenue} at Receipts Expenditures Revenue) at
Title/Federal CFDA Number No. Amcunt 09/30/02 Adjustmentcs FY 03 FY 03 09/30/03
U.8. Department of Education
Diract Programs
CFDA# B4.922n
Balance forwarded: $ 4,868,486 & 248,231 5 (246,240) $ - - 5 {9)
DF- Garapan Elementary School 0107A02 - (1) 1 - - -
DF - Hopwood Junior High School alo7aod - 78 (78} - - -
DF - Marianas High School Q1078086 - 1 [§8] - - -
DF - Qleai Elementary School Q107807 - - {27) - - (27}
DF - San Antonio Elem. School a107A10 - 1 {1) - - -
DF = San Vicente Elem. School 9L07A11 - 1 (B8] - - -
DF - Kagman Elemsntary School 4107A17 - (1) 1 - - -
EIE - Garapan Elementary School aiogacz - (1) 1 - - -
EIE - Oleai Elementary School 0109A07 - 533 (5CE) - - 27
EIE - San Vicente Elementary School 0109A11 - 71 171y - - -
EIE - Eucon International School a109BO2 - 1 (1) - - -
®IE - Grace Christian Saipan 010905 - 150 (750} - - -
EIE - Mount Carmel Schoal 01C9BOB - 1 (1) - - -
EZIE - Saipan International School 0109815 - 8,607 (8,607) - - -
EIE - Golden Harvest International 0109818 - 1 (1) - - -
EIE - Curriculum Acguisition aloescoz - 1 (1) - - -
EIE - Curriculum Identificatiocn Bi09C03 - 8 i8) - - -
EIE - Public School System 0109PSS - 490,119 {490, 119) - - -
CG@ - T6 Grace Christian Rota 0112B04 - {1 1 - - -
CG - T6 Mount Carmel Schoel 011zBC8 - 1,410 {1,410} - - -
CG@ - Té Sister Remedios Pre-School 0112B16 - 1 (1) - - -
Clags Size Reduction 0114 - 91,046 (91,046} - - -
CG Perscnnel T6 G119 - 1,162,807 {1,162,807) - - -
Strategles 1 - CAS 0Z01CAB2 - 3,681 {1,681} (6,738} 6,738 -
Strategies 1 - WMA 020 1WMA2 - {246,228) 246,238 (25,014) 25,014 -
Strategies 1 - SAT 02018AT2 - 1,530 (1,530) {6,935) 6,935 -
Strategies 1 - SEA 0201SEA2 - - - {219) 219 -
Strategies 1 - CBA 0205C8A2 - - - (10,937) 10,937 -
DF - Hopwood Junior High School 42078042 - - - {5,097) 5,097 -
DF = Marianas High School 92070062 - 2,144 (2,144) {20,553} 20,553 -
OF - Qleail Blementary School Q20784072 - 1,322 (1,322) {4,577} 4,577 -
DF - San Antonio Elementary School 0207A102 - - - {1,509} 1,509 -
DF - San Vicente Elemenatry School 0207A112 - 1 (B8] {1,314) 1,314 -
PF - Tinian Elementary School ¢207A132 - - - {B.966) 4,966 -
DF - WSR Elemsntary School ¢207A152 - z,308 12,388) {908) 998 -
DF - Kagman Elementary School 0z07a172 - - - (B8,884) 4,884 -
DF - Kagman High Schocl 0207A192 - [@)) 1 {536) 536 -
DF - Eucon International Schoal 02078022 - 1 {1y {2,103} 2,109 -
DF - Northern Marianas Academy 02078092 - 699 {699) (438} 438 -
DF - NMC Lab Sehool 02078102 - - - {1,989) 1,989 -
Drug Free - ADMIN. 0207C012 - 1 (1) - - -
EIE - Dandan Elementary School 0209A012 - 1 (1) - - -
EIEF - Garapan Elementary School 0209A022 - - - (7,756) 7,756 -
EEE - OTC Elementary School 02098032 - - - (4,698) 4,698 -
EIE ~ Hopwood Junior High School 0209A042 - 1 (1) - - -
EIE - Koblerville Elementary School 0203052 - 155 {155) - - -
EIE - Marianas High Scheol 020928062 - - - (2,372) 2,372 -
EIE - Oleai Elementary School 0209A072 - 250 (250) (4,338) 4,538 -
EIE - Ban Antonic Elementary Scheool 02094102 - - - 1,429) 1,42% -
EIE - San Vicente Elementary School 02092112 - - - (1,726) 1,726 -
EIE ~ Tinian Elementary Schocl 0209A132 - 410 (410) - - -
EIE - Tinian High School 0209A142 - - - {6,913) 6,913 -~
EIE - WSR Elementary School 0209R152 - 1 (1} (13,294) 13,294 -
EIE - Kagman Elementary School Q209A172 - - - (13,578) 13,578 -
EIE - Sinapalc Elementary Schocl 02094182 - 1 i1 {6,250) §,250 -
EIE - Eucon International School 0205R022 - 19,257 {19,257} {109,081 109,081 -
EIE - Grace Christian Saipan 02098032 - - - (4,377) 4,377 -
EIE - Grace Christian Rota 02098042 - 4,454 {4,454} (5,379) 5,379 -
EIE - Grace Christian Tinian 02098052 - - 197 (23,299) 23,299 187
EIE - Joshua Generation academy 0209B062 - - - {43,154) 43,154 -
EIE - Mount Carmel Schoel 0209B0DA2 ~ 2,266 (2,266) {7,029) 7,029 -
Total 4,668,486 1,793,988 (1,793,800) (361,596} 361,596 168
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Federal Grants Fund
Year Ended September 30, 2003

Receivable Receivable
From From
drantor Grantor
Program {Deferred Cash (Deferred
Federal Grantor/Program/ org. or Award Revenue) at Receipts Expenditures Revenue) at
Title/Fedaral CFDA Number NG . Amount 09/30/02 Adjustments FY 03 FY 03 09/30/03
U.8. pepartment of Education
Direct Proqrama
CrDA# §4.922A
Balance forwarded: $ 4,868,488 $1,793,%a8 $ {1,793,%00) $ {351,596) 5 361,5%6 % 183
EIE - Northern Marianas Academy 0209B092 - 4,786 (4,787) (17,203) 17,203 (1)
EIE - Saipan Community School 0209B112 - - - (32,803) 32,803 -
EIE - San Francisco De Berija 0z09Rp1I22 - - - {429) 429 -
EIE - Saint Joseph Schoel Tinian 02098142 - - - (1,366) 1,366 -
EIE - Saipan International &choel 0209B152 - 5,604 (5,604} {29,730) 29,730 -
EIEF - Bister Remedics Pre~School 62038162 - 4,329 (4,329} (5,047) 5,047 -
EIE - Whispering Palms School 02098172 - 3,936 (3,937} (6,834) €,834 (1)
EIE - Golden Harveat Internaticnal 420%B182 - - - {3,894) 3,894 -
EIE - Brilliant Star Montessori 020%B192 - - - (5,064) 5,064 -
EIE - Curriculum Acguisition 0209C022 - 2,068 {2,068 (94%) 349 -
EIE - Parental Involvement 020%C032 - 3¢5 (305) (103) 103 -
EIE - Public School System 0209p332 - {255,747) 270,158 (1,073,053} 1,073,053 14,411
GG T6 - Eucon International School 0212B022 - 416 (416) {16,108) 15,108 -
CG T6 - Grace Christian saipan 02128032 - 608 (600) (2,975) 2,975 8
C@ T6 - Grace Christian Rota 0212B042 - 523 (523) (7,771) 7,771 -
G 76 - @race Christian Tionian 02128052 - 1 (1) (16,128) 16,128 -
€G3 T6 = Joshua Generation Academy 0212B062 - - - (506) 506 -
¢G4 T6 - Mount Carmel School 02128092 - 620 (620) {65,351) 65,351 -
€6 T6 - Northern Marianas Academy 0212B092 - 1 {31) (1,151) 1,151 -
CG T6 - NMC Lab School 02128102 - - - (5,253) 5,253 -
cG T6 - Saint Joseph Scheol Tinian 02128142 - - - (6,630) 6,630 -
CG T6 - Saipan International School 0212B152 - 3,319 (3,319} 14,712 14,712 -
CG T6 - Siater Remedios Pre School 0212B162 - 25,859 (25,859) (1,887) 1,887 -
CG Té - Whispering Palms Schoal 0212B172 - 1 {1) - - -
¢G T6 - Golden Harvest International 0212B182 - - - {10,667) 10,667 -
CG Té - Brilliant Star Montessori 02128192 - 8,476 (8,476} (4,077) 4,077 -
¢T T6 - Admin. 0210ADM2 - 1 {1 {47y 17 =
Claas size Reduction 02140502 - {54,682) 54,682 - - -
CcG Personnel T& 0219CGP2 - (1,077,238} 1,077,238 {1,490,297) 1,490,297 -
CG T6 - CAS 021%CAS2 - 469 {469} - - -
CG T6é sStaff Development 021945p2 - 2,842 (2,842} (2,814) 2,814 -
Academic Achievement Disad. 031AAD3ARD - - 236 ({398,662} 394,669 236
Advanced Development Insgt. 03IAADIADL - - 570 {25,728) 25,728 570
CIA Professional Daevelopment 031AAD3CPD - - - (19,209) 19,209 -
JROTC 031AAD3JTRT - - as {9,067) 4,067 39
MATHLAND 0311AADIMAL - - - (63,754) 63,754 -
student Academic Competition 031AAD3IBAC - - 581 (75,262) 75,262 581
student Accountability Plan Assesa. 031AADISAP - - 2,092 (360,232) 360,232 2,092
standards Based Education 031AADISBE - - 1,506 (44,130} 44,130 1,50¢é
Stata Data Plan 031AADISDM - - - {4,575} 4,575 -
Distance Education Program 031DEPIDEP - - 1,353 (75,554) 70,354 1,353
Education Technology Program 031ETPIETP - - 6,050 {1090,522) 160,522 6,050
General Professional Development 031GPD3GPR - - 7,152 {111,486) 111,486 7,152
Limited English Proficiency 031LEP3LEF - - 2,232 {111,867) 111,867 2,232
Parental Invelvement Program 031PIP3PIP - - 3z7 (40,754) 40,754 327
Reading Firxst Program 031RFP3RFP - - 42,198 (1,281,029) 1,281,029 42,198
Teacher Professional Development 031TPD3TPD - - 1,511 {65,350) 65,350 1,811
Teacher Recruitment & Retention 031TRR3TRR - - 157 {17,017) 17,017 157
State administration Accreditation O3I25ARISAN - - 528 {39,845 319,045 529
State Administration Report 0325ARISAR - - {239} {13,503) 13,503 (239)
state Technical Assistance Operation 032520350 - - - {26,430) 25,430 -
ARD .~ Parsonnal 033AAD3LEA - - 93,836 (894,701) 894,701 93,836
LEP - Personnel 033LEP3LEP - - 7,488 (113,002) 113,002 7,488
PIP - Personnel Q33PIPILEA - - 4,891 (50,058) 60,058 4,891
RFP ~ Paraannel 033RFPILEA - - i,827 {B,125) 8,125 1,827
SAh - Personnel 034SAAISER - - 4,980 (56,986) 66,986 4,840
STP - Personnel 034STRISEA - - 20,284 {268,853) 266,853 20,284
ARD/T1 ~ CMS 035AAD3A01 - - 267 (51,983} 51,983 267
AAD/T1 - DRN 035RA03R02 - - 2 (23,247} 23,247 2
AAD/T1 - GES 035AAD3A0I - - 1,795 {111,348) 111,348 1,795
AAD/T1 - GTIC 035AAD3IA04 - - 351 (30,354) 30,354 351
Total 4,868,486 470,483 (253,965) (7,691,285) 7,691,285 216,520
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYS3TEM

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Federal Grants Fund
Year Ended September 30, 2003

Receivable Receivable
Frem From
Granter Grantor
Program (Deferred cash (Ceferred
Federal Granter/Program/ Org. or Award Revenue) at Recaipts Expenditures Revenue) at
Title/Federal CFDA Number NG. Amount 0G/30/02 Adjustments FY 03 FY 03 09/30/03
U.S. Department of Rducation
Direct Programs
CFDAF 94.9223
Balance forwarded: $ 4,868,486 $ 470,485 $ (253,965) $ (7,691,285) § 7,691,285 $ 216,520
AAD/T1 - HIH 035ARD3A0S - - 1,479 (65,195} 65,195 1,479
RAD/TL - KAG 035AAD3A0E - - 15 (97,728} 97,728 i5
AARD/T1 - KES 035ARD3A0T - - 1,444 (41,758) 41,758 1,444
AAD/T]1 - KHS 035AAD3A08 - - 370 (71,6986) 71,696 370
ARD/T1 - MHS 035AAD3A0Y - - (13,245) [74,179) 74,179 (13,2486}
AAD/T1 - DES 035AAD3A10 - - 123 {57,380) 57,380 123
AAD/T1 — RJH 035RADIALL - - - (3,752) 3,752 -
AAD/T1 - RHS C35AADIALZ - - 449 {14,318} 14,318 449
BAD/T1 -~ 5AS 035AADINIS - - 338 (17,951} 17,951 133
AAD/TI - SES 035AAD3AL4 - - 1,057 (23,4924 23,492 1,057
AAD/TL — SHS D35AAC3AL5 - - 1,328 {65,614) 65,614 1,326
BAL/T1 - BVS 035AAD3A16 - - - (73,326} 73,326 -
AAD/T1 - TAN G35BAD3ALT - - 984 (25,719} 25,719 984
AAD/TI - TES 035AAD3ALSB - - 157 (36,882) 36,882 157
AAD/TL - THS 035ARD3ALE - - 330 (22,233) 22,233 330
AAD/TL - WSR 035ARD3A20 - - - (74,015) 74,015 -
BAD/TL - HIY QISETRIRAS - - Ti8 {10,98%) 10,685 T18
AAD/T1 - SVS 035ETPIALEG - - 63 (3,785) 3,785 63
AAD/T1 - MHS 035LEP3JADY - - g9 (1,319) 1,319 89
BAD/T1 - KES (35PIP3AD7 - - 37 {1,115} 1,115 37
ARD/T1 - BVS 035PIP3Al6 - - - (536) 538 -
AAD/TL - CHMS 0353DF3A01 - - 3,349 {3,.349) 3,349 3,249
ARD/TL - KAG 0355DF3A06 - - 55 (2,027) 2,027 55
AAD/T1 - KES 035SDF3AGT - - 511 {7,605} 7,605 511
AAD/TL - MH3 0353DF3A09 - - 3,698 {5,467) 5,467 3,698
ARD/T1l - SAS Q358DF3A13 - - - (1,295) 1,295 -
AAD/TL - SVS 0355DF3Al6 - - 126 (4,245) 4,245 126
ARD/T1 - WER 035SCF3AZ0 - - - (1,493) 1,495 -
IAP/SER - ADMIN. 036 LAPIADM - - 287 {9,326) 9,326 257
CG: CSR Personnel - SER 037CSR3ISEA - - 20,548 (293,908} 293,904 24,548
CG: CBR Personnel - LEA 038CSR3ILEA - - 115,758 (227,940) 227,940 115,758
IAP - SFB 39IAP3SFR d = 736 {736) 736 736
Subtotal CFDA# 84,.322A $ 4,868,486 $ 470,485 £ (113,194) 5 (9,031,356) $ 9,031,356 g 157,291
Crpa# 84.215U
Christa McAulife Grant 0n45Cs 3 24,764 § {579} $ - s - $ - $ (57B)
Christa McAulife Grant CD45HS - {205) - - - {205}
Christa McAulife Grant 0045MA - {961) - - - {%61)
Christa McAulife Grant 0045MR - {52) - - - (52)
Christa McAulife Grant 0045RA - {1,818} - - - {1,818)
Cnrista Mchulife Grant TOASRF - (113 - - - (118)
Christa Mchulife Grant 0045RG - {105) - - - {105}
Christa McRulife Grant 0145 - (5,000} - - - (5,000)
Chrigta McAulife Grant 0145051 - 2,500 - - - 2,500
Christa McAulife Grant 0145MH1 - 2,500 - - - 2,500
Christa Mchulife Grant 0245PKW2 = (133} 122 £122) 122 111y
Subtetal CFDA# §4.2150 5 24,764 5 13,370} § 122 $ (122) g 122 S {3,848)
CPDAF 84.256A
Reading Master Kit (TFAS} 0345RK3RMK - = 39,665 (39,665) 39,665 39,665
Subtotal CFDA# 84,2563 5 - $ - g 39,665 5 (33,665} 5 39,665 s 39,665
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PUBLIC SCHCOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Federal Grants Fund
Year Ended September 30, 2003

Recaivable Receivable
From From
Grantor Grantor
Program (Deferred Cash (Deferred
Federal Grantor/Program/ Crg. or Award Revenne) at Reaceipts Expenditures Revenue) at
Title/Federal CFDA Number No. Amount 09/30/02 Adjustments FY 01 FY 03 09/30/03
CED. 84.0217
SPED - Admin 0l4a4 $ 3,161,954 5 {1) $ 1 $ - $ - 3 -
SPED Handicapped Children LEA 0185 - 1 (1) - - -
SPED Handicapped Children SEA 0283SPE2 - 4,555 (4,555} {411,893) 411,893 -
SPED - Admin 02845FPEZ - 6,375 {6,975} (32,133) 32,133 -
SPED Handicapped Children LEA 02B55PE2 - 153,476 {153,476} (1,101,175) 1,101,176 -
SPED Pacific Grant 02865PE2 - 37,918 (37,918} - - -
SPED Handicapped Children SEA G381SE3SPE - - 119,007 {545, 1B9) 545,184 119,007
SPED - Admin G334AD3SPR - - 4,477 (91,129) 41,129 4,477
SPED Handicapped Children LEA 0385LE3SPE - - 192,850 (1,503,198} 1,503,198 192,850
SPED Pacific Grant Q386PQIASER - 14,5548 {154,433} 154,433 14,556
Subtotal CFDA# B4.027 $ 3,161,954 5 202,924 S 127,966 5 [(3,839,151) s 3,839,151 § 330,890
CE 84.181
SPED Infant & Toddlexs posa $ 401,540 & (21.721) $ - § - § - $ (21,721
SPFED Infant & Toddlers 0138 - 21,721 - - - 21,721
SPED Infant & Toddlers 02895PEZ 30,229 {30,229) (144,603} 144,603
SPED Infant & Toddlers QI88IF3ISPE - = 31,211 3 04 349,046 11,211
Subtotal CFDA# 84.1B1 $ 401,540 § 30,229 5 982 § (493,649) § 193,649 S 31,211
CFD; 84.000
NCES Computera 2289 § - 8 1 $ - ¥ - 3 - & 1
Common Core - Data 2652 - {524) - - - (524)
WCES Computers 2389 - {310) 310 (310} 310 -
Common Core - Pata 2552 - {3,063) 174 (174} 174 (2,88%)
Commen Core - Data 2665 - {1,862} 1,918 {1,018) 1,018 (844)
Commen Core - Data 2689 - (412) 41z {412) 41z -
Commen Core - Data 2252 - 21,103 - - - 21,103
Comparability NCES 2789 - (24,330) 1,884 (1,884} 1,884 (22,446)
Common Core - Data 2865 - (1,374) 1,374 (1,374) 1,374 -
Common Core - Data 2965 - (1,150} 1,150 (1,150} 1,150 -
Comparahility NCES 2989 - {28,365) - - - (28,565}
Common Core - Data 006S - {19,953) 15,481 {15,981} 15,981 (3,972)
Common Core - Data 0165 - (29,742) 4,935 {4,935} 4,935 ({24,807)
Data Improvement - NCES a0e9 - (15,000) 11,954 {16,954) 16,954 {3,046)
Common Core - Data pzesccp2 - {28,000) - - - (28,000)
Comman Core - Data 165CC3CCD - - {21,000) - - (21,006}
Comparability RCES P2BINCER - 112,500) - - - {12,500)
Subtotal CFDA# 84.000 3 - 5 (145,681) 5 18,192 5 (44,192) 5 44,192 8 (127,489)
CED; 84.185
R.C. Byrd School Program 0374RBIRCB S - $ - s - $ {245} $ 245 s -
R.C. Byrd sSchool Program 0474RBARCH - - - {53,755) 53,755 -
Subtotal CFDA# 84.185 g - $ = g - § (54,000} § 54,000 8 —
Total U.S. Department of Education $ B,664,204 5 603,962 5 79,586 5(13,678,369) 5 13,678,369 5 683,548
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PUBLIC SCHOOIL SYSTEM

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Federal Grants Fund
September 30, 2003

Year Ended

Receivable Receivakle
From From
Grantor Grantor
Program {Deferred Cash {Deferred
Padaral Grantor/Program/ Org. or Award Revenue) at Receipts Expenditures Revepue} at
Title/Federal CFDA NHumber No. Amount 09/30/02 Adjustments FY 03 FY 03 09/30/03
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Direct Programs
CPDA# 93.600
Headstart Basic 92814D52 % 1,578,455 $ 205,439 §  (205,439) 5 {289,203 $ 289,203 $ -
Headstart Training 0282HDE2 - 27 (27} (617) 617 -
Headstart Admin. 0330AD3HDS - - 1,987 (56,539) 56,538 1,987
Headstart Basic 0331BA3HDS - - 84,468 {1,359,605) 1,359,645 84,468
Beadstart Training’ 0332 TR3IHDS - - - (47,719} 47,7192 -
Headstart Basic 0472BAAHDS - - 3,620 {3,620) 3,620 3,620
Subtotal CFDA# 93.600 $ 1,578,455 g 205,466 5 (115,391) 5 {1,757,302) $ 1,757,302 5 949,075
CFDA# 93.57%
Cchild care Bafore & After School 0094 5 1,636,489 3 (20} K - § - $ - § {20)
Child Care Administration 0l9g - 2,308 {z,308) (2,453) 2,453 -
child Care Certificates 0191 - - - {14,252) 14,252 -
Child Care Quality & Activity 0192 - - - (6,008) 6,008 -
Child Care sSchocl Age/R&R 1093 - - - - - -
child care Before & After School 1094 - {1} 1 - - -
Child Care Infant & Toddler 108s - - - 1235) 235 -
child Care Quality Expansion 1096 - 1 {1y {700) 700 -
Child Care Administration 0294cep2 - 5,439 (5,158) {39,352) 39,382 341
Child Care Certificates f291ceez2 - 1,713 1,337 {496,253) 496,253 3,050
Child Care Quality & Activity a2920CP2 - 1,837 (1,837) (61,041) 61,041 -
child Care School Age/R&R 0293CCP2 - 1 {1} (384) 384 -
child Ccare Before & After School 0294CCP2 - 721 {721) (90,164) 90,164 -
Child Care Infant & Toddler 0295CCP2 - - (1,204) (34,135) 34,135 {1,204)
Child Care Quality Expansion 0286CCP2 - 1,204 - (74,738) 74,738 1,204
¢Child Care Administration 0390AD3CCP - - 4,649 (40,878) 40,878 4,649
Child Care Certificates 0391CC3cere - - - (466,924) 466,924 -
¢hild Care Quality & Activity 0392QA3cCE - - 4,268 (7,503) 7,503 4,268
child Care School Age/R&R 0393RRICCP - - - {788) 788 -
Child Care Before & After Schocl 0324AF3CCP - - - (400,000} 400, 000 -
Child Care Infant & Toddler 0395IFICCP - - 1 (20,714} 20,714 1
Child Care Quality BExpansgion 0396QE3CCP - - 1 {711,198) 71,198 1
Subtotal CFDA# 93.575 § 1,636,489 § 13,263 5 (973) $ (1.827,720) $ 1,827,720 g 12,290
CPEDhA# 93.938 '
Aidg-HIV 0061 $ 160,481 $ 475 s - 5 - $ - 5 475
bids-HIV Media 01l6¢ - {122y 122 - - -
Aids-HIV 016l - (475) - - - (475)
Alds=HIV 0ZE1HTV2 - 4,813 (4,811) (122,670) 122,670 -
Aida-HIV 0361HIZHIV - = , (65,342) 65,342 3,421
Subtotal CFDA# 93.938 160,481 4,689 (1,268) (188,012) 188,012 3,421
Total U. S. Department of Health and
Human Services 5 3,375,425 5 223,418 &  (117,632) § (3,773,034} 5 3,773,034 5 105,786
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Birack Programs
CFDA #10.555
USDA TEFAR 017s $ 4,653,527 s (2,045) 3 - 3 -~ $ - 5 (2,045)
FNS Breakfast Lunch Program 0177 - 196,614 (198,614) - - -
FNS State Admin. Expense 0178 - {2) 2 - - -
FNS Nutrition Education 0179 - - - - - -
FNS Egquip. & Facility Improvement 0180 - 4,406 {4,406) - - -
FH5 Breakfast Lunch Program D277FNS2 - {30,953) 30,953 (2,034,912) 2,034,912 =
Total 4,653,527 162,020 (164,065} (2,034,912) 2,034,912 (2,045)
-40- .



Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Federal Grants Fund

Year Ended September 30, 2003

Receivable Receivabie
From From
Grantor Grantor
Program {Deferred Cash (Deferred
Federal Grantor/Program/ Oryg. or Award Revenue)} at Receipts Bxpenditures Revenue) at
Title/Federal CFDA Nupber Na. Amount 09/30/02 Adjustments FY 03 FY 03 09/30/03
U.3. Dopartment of Agriculture
birect Programs
CPDA #10.555
Balance forwarded: % 4,853,527 % 162,020 g (164,065} 5 (2,034,912} § 2,034,912 5 {2,045}
FN3 State Admin. Expense D27AFNS2 - 3,583 {3,685) [3,522) 3,522 -
FNS Equip. & Facility Improvement 0280FNS2 - 6,528 {6,528) (46,265) 46,265 -
FNS Breakfast Lunch Program C377BL3FNS - - 17,593 {2,197,956}) 2,197,956 17,593
FNS State Admin. Expense D373RD3FNS - - 3,752 {75,237) 15,237 1,752
FNS Nutrition Education Q379NE3FNES - - - {35,972) 15,972 -
FNS Equip. & Facility Improvement 0380EF3FNS =~ - (70,352} 70,352 -
Total U.S5. Department of Agriculture g 4,653,527 5 172,233 5 (152,933) S (4,464,216) $ 4,464,216 5 13,300
U.S. Dapartment of Transportation
Direct Programs
cFna #20.509
Faderal Transit Bus 0270BUS2 s 170,265 ] 75,833 5 94,432 ] {94,432) H 94,432 § 170,285
Federal Transit Bus 0370BU3BUS = - 26,193 (26,193) 26,193 26,193
Total U.S. Department cof Transportation 3 170,265 k) 75,833 E] 124,625 ) {120,625)% $ 126,625 $ 196,458
Oother
Direct Programs
CRF 94,0068
Americorps - Admin. 023BAMC2 $ 269,269 $ - S - s (322) 322 -
Americorps 0239AMC2 - 2,723 {322) (92,198) 92,198 2,401
Suptotal CFDax 94.006A 269,269 2,723 (322) (92,520} 92,520 2,401
CFDA# B84.352A
School Facilities Renovation 0140 $ - $ - $ - E] {2,500) $ 2,500 ] -
School Facilities Renovation 0141 - 1,943 (1,943) - - -
BFR - Garapan Elementary Schoel 0141GES - - - - - -
SFR - Gregorio T. Camacho Elem. Schoo 0141GTC - - - {7,200} 7,200 -
SFR - Hopwood Junior High sSchool 014iH0H - - - - - -
SFR = Koblerville Elementaxy Schaol 0141KES - 2,314 {2,314) (1G,491) 10,491 -
SFR - Marianas High School 0141MHS - - - - - -
SFR - Oleai Elementary School Q1410E8 - 104 (3041 {2,487) 2,447 -
SFR - Rota Elementary School J141RES - - - (9,997) 9,997 -
SFR - San Antonio Elementary School 0141888 - 861 (862) {26,583} 26,583 (1
SFR - San Vicente Elementaxy School 41418VS - 554 (554) (1,696} 1,696 -
SFR - Tanapag Elementary School 0141TAN - 6,925 (6,925} - - -
SFR - Tinian High School 0141THS - - (1) {8,500} 8,500 (1
SFR - WSR Elementary Schaool 0141WSR - - - {28,469} 28,469 -
Subtotal CFDA# §4.352A $ - $ 12;901 <3 (12,903} 3 {37,323) & 97,923 ] {2}
Total Other Programs ] 269,269 $ 15,624 5 {13,228) ] {190,443 ] 190,443 & 2,399
Tatal Federal Grants Fund g 17,132,690 §1,091,070 $ (82,579) 5(22,226,687) $ 22,226,687 §1,007,491
41~
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended September 30, 2002

(1) Scope of Review

The Public 8chool System was established as a public non-profit
corporation by the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands (CNMI)
Public Law 6-10, effective October 25, 1988 and began operations on
October 1, 1988. All significant operations of PSS are included in the
scope of the OMB Circular A-133 audit (the “Single Audit”). The U.S.
Department of the Interior‘s Office of the Inspector General has been
designated as PSS' cognizant agency for the Single Audit.

{2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
a. Bagis of Accounting

For purposes of +this report, certain accounting procedures were
followed which help illustrate the authorizations and expenditures of
the individual programs. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. All
authorizations represent the total allotments or grant awards received.
All expenses and capital outlays are reported as expenditures.

any federal funds expended in excess of federal funds received are
recorded as a receivable from the grantor agency and any federal funds
received in excess of federal funds expended are recorded as a payable
to the grantor agency.

b. Indirect Cost Allocation

PSS negotiated an indirect cost plan with the U.S. Department of the
Education for fiscal vear 2003. It is applicable to all federal grant
programs under the U.S. Department of Education and was 7.2% of payroll
expenditures for the year ended September 30, 2003.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

SINGLE AUDIT REPORTS

Year Ended September 30, 2003



PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL: CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Year Ended September 30, 2003



J. Seoit Magliari
b’ COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

SAIPAN: GUAM:
PME 297 PPP Box 10000 = Sarean, MP 96950 P. 0. Box [2734 « Tamunme, Guam 96931
Tew: {670) 233-1837 » Fax: (670) 233-8214 . TeL: (671) 472-2680 » Fax; (671} 472-2656

Independent Auditor’s Report
on Compliance and on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting Based on hudit of Financial Statements
rerformed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

The Board of Education
Public School System

T have audited the financial statements of the Public School System (PSS), as of
and for the year ended September 30, 2003 and have issued my report thereon
dated March 26, 2004. I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable  to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether PSS’ financial
statements are free of material misstatement, I performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of my audit and,
accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. The results of my tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance that is required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing my audit, I considered PSS’ internal control over
financial reporting in order to determine my auditing procedures for the purpose
of expressing my opinion on the financial statements and not to provide
asgurance on the internal control over financial reporting. My consideration of
the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all
matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be material
weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation
of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a
relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be
material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not
be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal
control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be
material weaknesses.

—-—43-



This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management of
pgsS, the Board of Education, federal awarding agencies, pass-through entities
and the cognizant audit and other federal agencies and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

= e MaaQaos 4 Qawwb
comionwealth of thelNorthern MariansaldIslands
March 26, 2004
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J. §eott Magliari
fe’ COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

SAIPAN: GUAM:
PMB 297 PPP Box 10000 » Sapan, MP 96950 P. O. Box 12734 » TamuNing, Guam 96931
TeL: (670) 233-1837 » Fax: (670) 233-8214 . TeL: (671) 472-2680 « Fax: (671) 472-2686

Independent Auditor’s Report on
Compliance With Requirements Applicable to
Each Major Federal Award Program and on Internal
Control Over Compliance With OMB Circular A-133 and on
the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

The Board of Bducation
Public School System

Compliance

I have audited the compliance of the Public School System (PSS) with the types
of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its
major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2003, The PSS’ wmajor
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of
the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (pages 46 through
48). Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of
PSS's management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on PSS compliance
based on my audit.

I conducted my audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB
Circular A-133 require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
PSS’ compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as
I considered necessary in the circumstances. I believe that my audit provides a
reasonable basis for my opinion. My audit does not provide a legal
determination on PS8’ compliance with those requirements.

As described in schedule of Finding Nos. 03-1 through 03-8 in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, PSS did not comply with requirements
regarding reporting and special tests and provisions with such requirements is
necessary, in my opinion, for PSS to comply with reguirements applicable to
these programs.

In my opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the preceding
paragraph, PSS complied, in all material respects, with the requirements
referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for
the year ended September 30, 2003.

—dH-



Internal Contrgol Over Compliapce

The management of PSS 1is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal eontrel over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing
my audit, I considered PSS’ internal control over compliance with regquirements
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order
to determine my auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing my opinion on
compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

I noted certain matters involving the internal control over compliance and its
operation that I consider to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions
involve matters coming to my attention relating to significant deficiencies in
the design or operation of the internal control over compliance that, in my
judgment, could adversely affect PSS’ ability to administer a major federal
program in accordance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants. Reportable conditions are described in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs in Finding Wos. 03-1 through 03-8.

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or
more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low
level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of Llaws,
regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a major
federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions.
My consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily
disclose all matters in the internal control that might be reportable conditions
and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that
are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, of the reportable
conditions described above, I consider Finding Nos. 03-1, 03-2, and 03-5 through
03-8 as identified in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned
Costs, to be material weaknesses.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

I have audited the basgsic financial statements of PSS as of and for the year
ended September 30, 2003, and have issued my report thereon dated March 26,
2004. My audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic
financial statements +taken as a whole. The acccompanying Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards (pages 35 through 41} is presented for the
purpose of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. This Schedule is the
responsibility of the management of PSS. Such information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and, in my opinion, except as described in the aforementioned report, ig fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements

taken as a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management of
PSS, the Board of Education, federal awarding agencies, pass-through entities
and the cognizant audit and other federal agencies and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

‘&;ﬁsssbcﬂrrr Vv\qa.a ‘o&.4£'c¥h¥*f
Comtonwealth of theUNorthern MariansaJ)Islands
March 26, 2004
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended September 30, 2003

SECTION T — SUMMARY OF RUDITOR‘S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:

e Material weakness({es) identified?

s Reportable condition(g) identified not
considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
¢ Material weakness(es) identified?

¢ Reportable condition(s) identified not
considered to be material weaknesges?

Type of auditor’'s report issued on compliance
for major federal programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance
with section 510(a) of Circular A-133?

—47-

Unqualified
ves X __no
ves X no
yes X __no

X yes no

X vyes no

Ungualified on all
federal programs
except Consolidated
Grants, Special
Education and
Headstart

X ves no



PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2003

SECTION I — SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS, Continued

Federal Awards

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Federal
Number Description Expenditures
84.9223a Consolidated Grant to Insular Areas $ 9,031,356
10.555 Nutrition Assistance Grant 4,464,216
84.027 Special Education Program 3,839,151
93.575 Child Care and Development Block Grant 1,827,720
93.600 Head Start Program 1,757,302
Total Federal Expenditures-Major Programs $20,919,.745

Represents 94% of the total awards expended

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

S 666,800

3% of the total awards expended

Auditee gualified as low-risk auditee yes ¥ mno

SECTION II — FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS

No matters were noted as reportable conditions for the fiscal year 2003.

—48-



PUBLIC SCHOOL SY¥STEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2003

SECTION _1II — FEDERAT, AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Special Tegts and Provisions - Consolidated Grants to Insular Areas

Finding No. 03-1

CEFDA Mo,

84.922A

Findings/Noncompliance

Criteria:

As stated in 34CFR Part §76.132, the recipient
should evaluate the effectiveness of the programs
in meeting the purposes and objectives in the
authorizing statues under which programs are used
and administered and an interval evaluation of
these programs must be conducted in accordance
with the procedures the Secretary of EBEducation
may prescribe.

Conditiong
PSS failed to properly conduct evaluation of the
programs under this Grant to ensure its
effectiveness in meeting its purposes and
obhjectives.

Cause:

The cause of the above condition is PSS lacks a
system that will properly monitor, implement and
evaluate the effectiveness of the activities
performed under this program to ensure that the
stated goals and objectives are met.

Effect:

This would affect the performance of PSS as a
State Educational Agency. Failure to monitor and
evaluate their programs and activities
demonstrate neglect on their responsibility as
the State Educational Agency (SEA).

Recommendation:

PSS should develop an internal control system
that would specify the detailed procedures in
carrying out the programs under this grant.
Also, an individual should be assigned to take
charge of the monitoring that will ensure that
the purposes and objectives of this grant are
met.

—49-

Questioned
Costs



SECTION III — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COsTS
Special Tests and Provisions = Consolidated Grants to Ipnsular Areas

03-1, Continued

Finding No.

PUBLIC SCHOQL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended September 30, 2003

CEDA No.

84.922A

Findings/Noncompliance

Prior Year Status:

The above condition was cited as a finding
in the 8ingle Audit for fiscal years 2000
to 2002.

auditee Response and Corrective Action Plan:
PSS agrees with the finding. PS8 has

recently hired a Federal Monitoring Officer
whose services will ©be dedicated in
evaluating the effectiveness of the
different programs and ensuring their
adherence to the procedures prescribed by
the gecretary of Education.

An employment contract was provided for
review validating the corrective action
taken. The Federal Monitoring Officer will
begin employment with PSS on May 3, 2004.

-50—
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Costs



PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2003

SECTION III — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Special Tests and Provisions - Consolidated Grants to Insular Areas

Finding No. 03-2

CFDA No.

84.922R

Findingg/Noncompliance

Criterias

Based on the terms and conditions stated on the
State Plan regarding the local use of funds, all
procurement orders will be received by PSS,
gtamped as property of PSS, and then loaned to
the private schools for use in the approved
innovative assistance programs. An inventory
will be maintained for all materials sent to the
private schools.

Condition:
PSS does not maintain an inventory of materials
gent to the private schools.

Cauge:

The cause of the above condition is the lack of
system that will document, monitor, and evaluate
the wvarious activities administered by PSS as a

grantee agency.

Effect:
The effect of +this condition is possible

disallowed costs and non-compliance with the
grant terms and conditions.

Recommendation:
PSS should adopt a system that will ensure
compliance with the grant terms and conditions.

Prior Year Status:
The above condition was cited as a finding in the
Single Audit of fiscal years 2001 and 2002.

Auditee Response and Corrective Action Plan:
PS5 concurs. Accurate inventory of materials

sent to the private schools in prior yeas was
non-existent given the difficulty of employing a
full-time trained Federal Monitoring Officer.
With the employment of the Monitoring Officer,
this non-compliance will be rectified with a
rigorous system that will document, monitor and
evaluate the activities of the grantee agencies.

51—

Questioned
Costs



PUBLIC SCHOQL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2003

SECTION III — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Special Tests and Provisions - Special Education Program

Finding No. 03-3

CFDA No.

84.027

Findings/Noncompliance

Criteria:

Certain general requirements under the
Comprehensive System of Personnel Development
(CSPD) were enumerated in the Eligibility
Document of the Special Education Program.

Condition:

PSS lacks a system that will ensure all of the
general requirements under this program are being
carried out as planned.

Cause:

The cause of the above condition is that PS8
failed to develop an effective monitoring system
that would keep track all the activities under
the federally funded programs and that policies
and procedures exists is consistent with the
requirements of the grant.

Effectt

A lack of an effective monitoring system prevents
PSS from properly carrying out its programs’
goals and objectives as both the State
Educational Agency (SEA) and Local Educational
Agency (LEA).

Recommendation:
PSS should develop an effective internal control

system that would assist them in meeting the
goals and objectives of the program grants as
required by the Federal grant.

-52-
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questicned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2003

SECTION III — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AKD QUESTIONED COSTS

Special Tests and Provisions - Special Education Program

Finding No. 03-3, Continued

CFDA No.

84.027

Findings/Noncompliance

puditee Response and Corrective Action Plang
PSS concurs. A CSPD Coordinator was recently

hired to implement the activities and objectives
of the Comprehensive System  of Personnel
Development for the Special Education FProgram.
The CSPD Coordinator submitted a detailed report
of CSPD activities to the auditor on March 5,
2004. Not 1listed 4in the report is the
recruitment of an off-island Special Education
School Counselor, and on-igsland Special Education
Teacher.

-h3-
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2003

SECTION IIT — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED CQSTS

Special Tests and Provisions - Special Educgation Program

Finding No.

03-4

CFDA Ho.

84.027

Findings/Noncompliance

Criteria:

In accordance with the CNMI Special Education
Program 2001-2002 State Plan and as reguired by
34 CFR §300.152, it is the policy of the Public
School  System to  develop and  implement
interagency agreements between the Public School
System and all other CNMI agencies that provide
or pay for services required under the State Plan
for children with disabilities. As stated in the
State Plan, “the CNMI currently has interagency
agreements (sometimes referred to as Memoranda of
Understanding) with the Commonwealth Health
Center, the Department of Mental Health, the
Office of Vocational Rehabilitation Services and
the Division of Youth Services.

Condition:

There was no Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
established with the Department of Mental Health,
Commonwealth Health Center and the Division of
Youth Services for the fiscal year 2003. The MOU
expired September 30, 2000. As justified by PSS,
no MOU was considered necessary after this date
because services performed by these agencies
should be with no-charge. Thus, no MOU was
required.

PS8 failed to update and make the necessary
changes on the documentation of their plans and
programs identified in the State Plan.

Cause:

The cause of the above condition is lack of
administrative oversight to ensure that all the
necessary changes or any updates on their plans
and programs are timely and properly documented
in the State Plan.

54—
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SY¥STEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2003

SECTION IIT — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIQONED COSTS
Special Tests and Provisions - Special Education Prodgram

Finding No.

03-4, Continued

CFDA No.

84.027

Findings/Noncompliance

Effect:

The effect of the above condition is that the
Special Education Program may be wrongly
construed as not in adherence to the State Plan
and federal regulations.

Recommendation:

The Special Education Program should update and
make the necessary changes on documenting its
plans and programs identified in the State Plan.

Prior Year Status:
The above condition was cited as a finding in the
Single Audit for fiscal years 2000 to 2002.

auditee Response and Corrective Action Plan:

PSS agrees with the finding. The FY 2004
Eligibility Document (State Plan) will be updated
to correct and resolve this finding. In

addition, PS8 already drafted and signed a
Memorandum of Agreement with the Division of
Youth Services.

~55-
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2003

SECTION III — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Special Tests and Provisiong - Headstart Program

Finding No. 03-5

CFDA No.

93.600

Findings/Noncompliance

Criteria:

Head Start’s educational program is designed to
meet the needs of each child, the community
served, and its ethnic and cultural
characteristics.

Every child receives a variety of learning
experiences to foster intellectual, social and
emotional growth. Head Start also emphasizes the
importance of the early identification of health
problems. Every c¢hild is involved in a
comprehensive health program, which includes
immunizations, medical, dental, mental health and
nutritional services.

Condition:

PSS entered into an agreement with the Department
of Health and Northern Marianas College providing
the required services that every child is
entitled to receive under this program. However,
the related parties involved did not sign the
Memorandum of Agreement provided.

Cause:
The cause of this condition is unknown.

Effect:

Since the Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) is not
yet considered to be official, there is no clear
agreement yet or definite pclicies and procedures
validating that PSS has already enforced the
comprehensive health program as required wunder
Headstart.

Recommendation:
PSS should ensure that the above-mentioned MOA be

properly endorsed by all related parties to make
it official. Thus, each eligible recipient will
then be receiving the necessary services they are
entitled to.

—56—
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

gchedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2003

SECTION III — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QURSTIQONED COSTS

Special Tests and Provigions - Headstart Proqram

Finding Ho. 03-5, Continued

CFDA No. Findings/Noncompliance

93.600
Auditee Response and Corrective Action Plan:

The MOA is currently with the Northern Marianas
College for signature. PSS has already followed
up and asserts that the MOA will be signed by the
related parties to speed up the implementation of
the comprehensive health program as reguired
under the Headstart program.
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2003

SECTION IXII — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Special Tests and Provisions - Headstart Program

Finding No. 03-6

CFDA No,

93.600

Findings/Nonccmpliance

As stated in the 45 CFR section 1306.30c, the
facilities used by Early Head start and Head
Start grantees for regularly scheduled center-
based and combination program option classroom
activities or home-based group socialization
activities must comply with applicable State and
local requirements concerning licensing.

The local licensing requirements applicable to
Headstart are:

l. Fire Safety Inspection from the Department of
Public Safety.

2. Facilities Inspection by the Bureau of
Environmental Health.

Conditions

a. Two or 16.67% out of twelve Headstart centers
were only inspected for fire safety.

b. Ten or 83.33% out of twelve Headstart centers
were only inspected for facilities inspection.

Cause:

The cause of this condition is that PS8 failed to
follow-up and coordinate the required inspection
of Headstart facilities with the concerned
agencies.

Effect:

The effect of the above condition is that all
Headstart centers may be regarded as not vyet
fully 1licensed +to operate. This is a non-
compliance with the federal requirements.

Recommendations:

PSS should ensure that all Headstart centers be
properly inspected to ensure that the centers are
in compliance with the 1local and federal
reguirements.

-8~

Questioned
Costs
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2003

SECTION IIT — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDIMGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Special Tests and Provisions - Headstart Program

Finding No. 03-6, Continued

CFDA No. Findings/Noncompliance

93.600

Auditee Response and Corrective Action Plan:
PSS agrees with the finding. The Fire Division

of the Department of the Public Safety conducted
a follow-up fire safety inspection of the nine
Headstart centers in Saipan on March 15" and 16
of 2004. The Tinian Headstart was previocusly
inspected on last Qctober 15, 2003.
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2003

SECTION III — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Special Tests and Provisions - Headstart Prodram

Finding No.

CFDA No.

93.600

3-7

Findingg/Noncompliance

Criterias

As stated in the 45 CFR sectien 1306.30¢,
grantees must comply with applicable State and
local requirements concerning licensing. One of
the requirements includes an approved fire safety
inspection from the Department of Public Safety.

Conditiont

The two Headstart e¢enters Inspected by the
Department of Public Safety failed to meet the
fire safety standards.

Cauge:
The cause of this condition is unknown.

Effecty

The effect of the above condition is that
Headstart centers may be hazardous for the
children and expose them to possible accidents or
danger. This is non-compliance with the local
and federal requirements.

Recommendation:
PSS should ensure that all Headstart facilities

meet the fire safety standard requirements of the
Department of Public Safety to avoid any
potential accident.

Auditee Response and Corrective Action Plan:
Based on the follow-up fire safety inspection

conducted by the Fire Division of the Department
of Public Safety, an approved disposition in
accordance with the Uniform Fire Code was granted
to the nine Headstart centers in Saipan per
reports dated March 15" and 16" of 2004. For the
Tinian Headstart Center, a fire safety
certification was issued on October 15, 2003
stating that the center has met the fire safety
requirements as seth forth by Public Law 1-8.
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year BEnded September 30, 2003

SECTION IIT — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Special Tests and Provisgions - Headstart Program

Pinding No. 03-8

CFDA No:

93.600

Findings/Noncompliance

Criteria:

as stated in the 45 CFR section 1306.30c,
grantees must comply with applicable State and
local reguirements concerning licensing. PSS is
required to comply with the Bureau of
Environmental Health minimam standards and
Federal regulations.

Condition:
All Headstart centers inspected were noted to be

substandard, some of which were identified to be
in violation of Federal regulations that are as
follows:

a. No built-in restroom, it is recommended to
have at least one restroom accessible to
students.

b. Improper storage of cleaning equipment,
cleaning compounds and sanitizing agents.

c. Cobweb built-up on c¢eiling corners, stained
and unclean floor carpet needs to be cleaned
and maintained regularly.

d. Disorganized construction materials and
unsecured abandoned building within the
center’'s perimeter and disorganized

construction equipment and not elevated.

e. No built-in hand washing basin (at least one
hand washing basin is required £for every
classroom).

f. No playground.

g. Hand washing basin without paper towel and
liguid scap.

h. Uncollected fallen rotten fruits.

i. Dirty air-con filter and grill.

i. Dusty glass windows.

Cause:

The cause of this condition is that PSS has no
written policies and procedures on c¢leaning,
sanitizing, and general maintenance of the
Headstart centers.
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2003

SECTION IIT — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Special Tests and Provisions - Headstart Prodram

Finding No. 03-8, Continued

CFDA No.

93.600

Findings/Noncompliance

Cause, Continued:
Also, PSS failed to monitor the centers to ensure

that they comply with the local and federal
requirements.

Effect:

The effect of the above condition is that PSS may
not be providing a c¢lean and orderly environment
conducive to learning for the children. This is
non-compliance with the local and federal
requirements concerning licensing.

Recommendation:

PSS should take an immediate corrective action
for the cited wviolations and ensure that all
Headstart facilities meet the standard
requirements of the Bureau of Health and
Environmental Health and that they comply with
the Federal regulations.

Auditee Response and Corrective Action Plan:

A contract for preventive maintenance and repair
work of all the Saipan Headstart facilities was
awarded +to System International Construction
under purchase order numbers 28995 OL and 29434
OL. The scope of work addresses the deficiencies
and violations cited by the Division of Public
Health and Department of Public Safety. All
Headstart Centers are now staffed with qualified
coordinators who are tasked with overseeing the
daily operation of the centers and ensuring total
compliance with the local and federal
requirements.

Total Questioned Costs
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Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2003

SECTION IV — SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS

2002 audit Findings

Finding No. 02-1

Condition: It appears that PSS does not adequately monitor adherence to its
travel policies. Following are the results of the examination performed:

a. 1 out of 7, or 14% travel requests examined was not submitted within
ten working days prior to commencement of travel.

b. 3 out of 7, or 43% travel vouchers examined were not submitted within
ten working days upon completion of travel.

c. 3 out of 7, or 43% samples tested were not automatically deducted the
amount due from payroll for untimely liguidation of travel advance.

Corrective action: Resolved. PSS management has made tremendous efforts to
inform employees of the travel advance policies. A new travel policy dated
August 1,2002 was issued regarding strict enforcement of the travel liguidation.
The policy indicates that 10% of the total travel advances will be withheld and
will be paid out to the traveler only upon liguidation; otherwise, the 10% will
be forfeited. From this policy, the management exercised strict adherence fully
correcting the findings noted above. buring the audit of FY 2003, no finding
with the same condition was identified.

Finding No. 02-2

condition: PSS’ balance sheet of general fund as of September 30, 2002 was not
balanced. Total liabilities and fund equity exceeded assets by 59,590. This
amount was adjusted to miscellaneous expenses to correct the balance of the
financial statements of PSS.

Corrective action: Resolved. During the year, the management of PSS performed
an analysis of their current accounts. This helped them ensure that at the end
of each reporting period, generated financial reports represent the accurate
information that fair and correct financial decisions can be made out of it.
For the audit of FY 2003, no finding with the same condition was identified.

Finding No. 02-3

Condition: Expenditures pertaining to this program are well supported but PSS
failed to adhere to the requirements of the State Plan. There was no proper
monitoring of the activities held during the year, no records were maintained on
the number of meetings held, the number of parents receiving the training and
type of training provided for the fiscal year 2002.

Corrective action: During the FY¥ 2003 audit, all program managers under the
Consolidated Grants provided a report summarizing the activities performed,
goals achieved, evaluation of the activities held and future objectives that
still has to be met for the improvement of the preograms. For the FY 2004, a
quarterly non-fiscal report is required from each program managers in response
to the need of a system that will document, monitor and evaluate its wvarious
activities.
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Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2003

Finding No. 02-4

Condition: Eligibility test for the Nutrition Assistance Program showed the
following:

a. 12 or 48% of the participants tested have only one paycheck as proof of
income attached to the application form.

b. 3 or 12% of the participants, who are food stamp recipients, do not have a
photocopy of the Food Stamp I.D. card attached to the NAP recipient form
to show independent verification of this number.

Corrective action: Resolved. Food and nutrition services of PSS improved their
current system to ensure that all of the necessary documentation is recelived
before a child is enrolled in the Food and Nutrition Assistance Program. For
fiscal year audit of 2003, no finding with the same condition was identified.

Finding No. 02-5

Condition: Bligibility test for the Childcare & Development Block Grant Program
showed the following:

a. 3 out of 25 applicants, or 12% do not have copy of birth certificates or
passports to verify their citizenship.
b. 1 out of 25 applicants, or 4% do not have proof of full time enrollment at

an acceptable institution on file.

Corrective action: Resolved. childcare & Development Block Grant Program of
PSS improved +their current system <o ensure that all of +the necessary
documentation is received before a child is enrolled in the Food and Nutrition
Assistance Program. For fiscal year audit of 2003, no finding with the same
condition was identified.

Finding No. 02-6

Condition: PSS does not prepare an annual report that would detail progress
toward its goals/objectives.

Corrective action: During the FY 2003 audit, all program managers under the
Consolidated @Grants provided a report summarizing the activities performed,
goals achieved, evaluation of the activities held and future objectives that
still has to be met for the improvement of the programs. For the FY 2004, a
quarterly non-fiscal report is required from each program managers in response
to the need of a system that will document, monitor and evaluate its various

activities.
Finding No. 02-7

Condition: PSS failed to submit an annual report to the U.S. Department of
Education.

Carrective action: Resolved. The 2002 and 2003 annual report was submitted to
USDE last Nov 17, 2003.
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Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2003

Finding No. 02-8

Condition:
Review of the Quarterly Performance reports concerning submission compliance are

noted as follows:
Date No. of

Submitted days late

Quarter ended
December 31, 2001 02/27/02 27 days

Corrective action: Resolved. The Federal Program Office of PSS took the
necessary measures to ensure that they would comply with the reporting deadlines
of the quarterly performance reports as required by Food and Nutrition. For
fiscal year audit of 2003, no finding with the same condition was identified.

Finding No. 02-9

Condition: The CNMI/PSS has not complied within the period regquired for the
submission of annual Single Audit of the Nutrition Assistance Grant for fiscal

year 2002,

Corrective action: With the multi-year proposal, the audit of the FY 2003 has
already started in December 2003. The planned date for its submission will be
on May 2004. Thiz will be a month early before the deadline, which is on June
2004. The management of PSS has made an extensive effort to ensure that all
schedules and supporting documents have been provided to speed up the completion
of the audit.

Finding No. 02-10
condition: PSS failed to comply with the submission of the annual report.

Corrective action: Resolved. PSS submitted the 2002 annual report to the
federal agency as required by the Department of Health and Human Services.

Finding Neo. 02-11
Condition: No evaluation is being done for the aforementioned activities.

Corrective action: During the FY 2003 audit, all program managers under the
Consolidated Grants provided a report summarizing the activities performed,
goals achieved, evaluation of the activities held and future objectives that
still has to be met for the improvement of the programs. For the FY 2004, a
guarterly non-fiscal report is required from each program managers in response
to the need of a system that will document, monitor and evaluate its wvarious
activities.

65—



PUBLIC SCHOOQL SYSTEM

Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2003

Finding No. 02-12

Condition: Reports are not maintained to document the activities mentioned
above.

Corrective action: During the FY 2003 audit, all program managers under the
Consolidated Grants provided a report summarizing the activities performed,
goals achieved, evaluation of the activities held and future objectives that
still has to be met for the improvement of the programs. For the FY 2004, a
quarterly non-fiscal report is required from each program managers in response
to the need of a system that will document, monitor and evaluate its various
activities.

Finding No. 02-13

Condition: PSS did not conduct any evaluation of the programs to ensure its
effectiveness in meeting its purposes and objectives.

Corrective action: During the FY 2003 audit, all program managers under the
Consolidated Grants provided a report summarizing the activities performed,
goals achieved, evaluation of the activities held and future objectives that
still has to be met for the improvement of the programs. For the FY 2004, a
quarterly non-fiscal report is required from each program managers in response
to the need of a system that will document, monitor and evaluate its various
activities. This condition was still congidered and identified as a finding in
the 2003 audit report as Finding No. 03-01.

Finding No. 02-14
Condition: PSS does not maintain an inventory of materials sent to the schools.

Corrective action: For the current year, no corrective action yet was taken to
fully correct this finding. The same condition was identified in the Audit of
fiscal year 2003 as Finding No. 03-2.

Finding No. 02-15

Condition: The Federal Program Office did visit schools during school years
2001 — 2002 but no documentation of the dates were logged. They were only able
to document the meeting with all school on Safe & Drug Free issues on May 10,

2002.

Corrective action: During the FY 2003 audit, all program managers under the
Consolidated Grants provided a report summarizing the activities performed,
goals achieved, evaluation of the activities held and future objectives that
still has to be met for the improvement of the programs. For the FY 2004, a
quarterly non-fiscal report is required from each program managers in response
to the need of a system that will document, monitor and evaluate its wvarious

activities.
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summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2003

Finding No. 02-16

Condition: PSS was not able to provide the Annual Child Count for the year
2002,

Corrective action: Resolved. PSS provided the annual child count for the year
2003. This reflects that a system is currently in place to ensure that all
requirements on the Federal regulations and activities or services to be
performed as indicated on the State Plan are all being complied with.

Finding No. 02-17

Condition: PSS did not develop a service plan for its implementation on private
schools.

Corrective action: Resolved. Based on the IDEA Part B & C Self Assessment
Report of the Special Education of PSS, it is not a requirement for public
agencies to develop services plans for each and every parentally placed private
school child with a disability residing in the LEA's jurisdiction regardless of
whether that child receives services from LEA.

Finding No. 02-18

Condition: There was no Memoranda of Understanding (MOU) established with the
Division of Youth Services for the year 2001. As Justified by PS5, the MOU
expired September 30, 1999, No MOU was considered necessary after this date
because PSS performs services for the D¥S at no charge. No consideration was
exchanged between the two parties, DYS and PSS therefore, no MOU is required.
Corrective action: For the current year, no corrective action yet was taken to fully
correct this finding. The same condition was identified in the Single audit for
fiscal year 2003 as Finding No. 03-4.

Finding No. 02-19

Condition: PS8 lacks management oversight that would ensure compliance with the
above criterion. In addition, PS8 lacks the necessary system and procedures
that will provide concrete data and statistics regarding children with
disabilities.

Corrective action: Resolved. During the fiscal year 2003, the Headstart of PSS
was able to coordinate with the related agencies of the program for children
with disabilities to ensure that all children that needs their service were
congidered and fully accounted for, .

Finding No. 02-20

Condition: PSS has unavailable regular services from specialists such as
ophthalmologists and Mental Health Psychologists. Patients are referred only
when necessary immediately following the free physical examination required
before registering for Head Start. Parents are then responsible for any other
expenses incurred during specialized <treatment or follow-up services.
Specialized dental health services for children with disabilities are not also
available locally.
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Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2003

Finding N¥o. 02-20, Continued

Corrective action: A Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) was executed between the
Department of Health and the Headstart program of PSS. The MOA accommodated the
needs of the children enrolled under the Headstart on their comprehensive health
program. However, this MOA is not yet fully executed as this has not yet been
signed by both parties. This was considered as Finding No. 03-5 in the 2003
audit report.

Finding Mo. 02-21

Condition: The initial screening for children with disabilities is conducted by
Head Start staff who may lack the necessary competence and experience in
handling the process. '

Corrective action: Resolwved. With the hiring of the Disabilities Service
Manager and the Health and Disabilities Service Coordinator, the process of
assessing the children including the initial screening will be properly
addressed and implemented.

Finding No. 02-22

Condition: as of September 30, 2002, the regulations imposed on childcare
providers were still in draft format. This could imply that there is no cleax
basis on the PSS to issue payments to the current childcare providers, as they
cannot be fully regarded as approved providers since the day care rules and
regulations are not yet promulgated.

Corrective action: Resolved. The administrative regulations on childecare
providers have been promulgated on December 12, 2003.

2001 mudit ¥indings

Finding No. 01-~1

Condition: It appears that PSS does not adequately monitor adherence to its
travel policies. Following are the results of the examination performed:

a. 1 out of 7 travel reguests examined was not submitted within ten
working days prior to commencement of travel.

b. 4 out of 7 travel vouchers examined were not submitted within ten
working days upon completion of travel.

c. 2 out of 7 samples tested were not automatically deducted the amount
due from payroll for untimely liquidation of travel advance.

Corrective action: Resolved. PS5 management has made tremendous efforts to
inform employees of the travel advance policies. A new travel policy dated
August 1,2002 was issued regarding strict enforcement of the travel liquidation.
The policy indicates that 10% of the total travel advances will be withheld and
will be paid out to the traveler only upon liquidation; otherwise, the 10% will
be forfeited. From this policy, the management exercised strict adherence fully
correcting the findings noted above. During the audit of FY 2003, no finding
with the same condition was identified.
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Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2003

Finding No. 01-2

condition: PSS’ balance sheet of general fund as of September 30, 2001 was not
balanced. Total assets exceeded total liabilities and fund equity by $55,938.
This amount was adjusted to miscellaneous expenses to correct the balance of the
financial statements of PSS.

Corrective action: Resolved. During the year, the management of PSS performed
an analysis of their current accounts. This helped them ensure that at the end
of each reporting period, generated financial reports represent the accurate
information that fair and correct financial decisions can be made out of it.
For fiscal year audit of 2003, no £inding with +the same condition was
identified.

Finding No, 01-3

Condition: Expenditures pertaining to this program are well supported but PSS
failed to adhere to the requirements of the State Plan. There was no Pproper
monitoring of the activities held during the year, no records were maintained on
the number of meetings held, the number of parents receiving the training and
type of training provided for the fiscal year 2001.

Corrective action: During the FY 2003 audit, all program managers under the
Consolidated Grants provided a report summarizing the activities performed,
goals achieved, evaluation of the activities held and future obijectives that
still has to be met for the improvement of the programs, For the FY 2004, a
quarterly non-fiscal report is required from each program managers in response
to the need of a system that will document, monitor and evaluate its various
activities.

Finding No. 01-4

Condition: Eligibility test for the Nutrition Assistance Program showed the
following:

a. 9 or 36% of the participants tested have only one paycheck as proof of income
attached to the application form.

b. 4 or 16% of the participants, who are foocd stamp recipients, do not have a
photocopy of the Food Stamp I.D. card attached to the NAP recipient form to show

independent verification of this number.
c. 1 or 4% of the participants did not indicate the Food Stamp ID card, and no
copy of the card was attached to the application form.

Corrective action: Resolved. FPFood and nutrition services of PSS improved their
current system to ensure that all of the necessary documentation is received

before a child is enrclled in the Food and Nutrition Assistance Program. For
fiscal year audit of 2003, no finding with the same condition was identified.

Finding No. 01-5

condition: Eligibility test for the Childcare & Development Block Grant showed
the following:

a. 5 applicants or 20% of those tested do not have copy of birth certificates or
passports to verify their citizenship.
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Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2003

Finding Ho. ¢1-5, Continued

b. 3 applicants or 12% of those tested do not have birth certificates to proof
that children were under the age of 13,

Corrective action: Resolved. Childcare & Development Block Grant Program of
PSS improved their current system to ensure that all of the necessary
documentation is received before a child is enrolled in the Child Care and
Development Block Grant Program. For fiscal year audit of 2003, no finding with
the same condition was identified.

Finding No. 01-6

Condition: Eligibility test for the Headstart program showed the following:

a. 25%, or 5 out of 20 files tested had missing birth certificates or passports.
b. 10%, or 2 out of 20 files tested did not have dates on the application.

c. 30%, or 6 out of 20 files tested had no income verification.

d. 60%, or 12 out of 20 files tested had missing health certificate.

Corrective action: Resolved. Headstart Program of PSS improved their current
system to ensure that all of the necessary documentation is received before a
child is enrolled in the Headstart Program. For fiscal year audits of 2003 and
2002, no finding with the same condition was identified.

Finding No. 01-7

Condition: PSS does not prepare an annual report that details the progress
toward meeting its goals/objectives.

Corrective action: During the FY 2003 audit, all program managers under the
Consolidated Grants provided a report summarizing the activities performed,
goals achieved, evaluation of the activities held and future objectives that
still has to be met for the improvement of the programs. For the FY 2004, a
guarterly non-fiscal report is required from each program managers in response
to the need of a system that will document, monitor and evaluate its wvarious
activities.

Finding No. 01-8

Condition: PSS failed to submit an annual report to the U,S. Department of
Education.

Corrective action: The 2002 and 2003 annual report was subsequently submitted
to the U.S. Department of Education last Novewber 17, 2003.

Finding No. 01-9
Condition: Review of the Quarterly Performance reports concerning submission
compliance are noted as follows:

Date No. of
Submittad days late

Quarter ended
December 31, 2000 03/09/01 37 days
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Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2003
Finding No. 01-9, Continued

Condition, Continued
Date No. of
Submitted davs late

guarter ended

April 30, 2001 8/2%3/01 29 days
Quarter ended
October 31, 2001 11/02/01 2 days
Corrective action: Resolved. The Federal Program Office of PSS tock the

necessary measures to ensure that they would comply with the reporting deadlines
of the guarterly performance reports as required by Food and Nutrition. During
the audit of FY 2003, no finding with the same condition was identified.

Finding No. 01-10

Condition: The CNMI/PSS did not comply within the period required for the
submigsion of annual Single Audit of the Nutrition Assistance Grant for fiscal
yvear 2001, which was due no later than June 30, 2002.

Corrective action: With the multi-year proposal, the audit of the FY 2003 has
already started in December 2003. The planned date for its submission will be
on May 2004. This will be a month early before the deadline, which is on June
2004, The management of PSS has made an extensive effort to ensure that all
schedules and supporting documents have been provided to speed up the completion
of the audit.

Finding No. 01-11

Condition: PSS failed to comply with the submission of the annual report.
Corrective Action: PSS was able to provide the current year annual report as
required by the Department of Health and Human Services. This results to
compliance on the reporting requirements of Childecare funds.

Finding No. 0l1-12

Condition: No evaluation was performed for the activities mentioned above.
Corrective action: During the FY 2003 audit, all program managers under the
Consolidated Grants provided a report summarizing +the activities performed,
goals achieved, evaluation of the activities held and future objectives that
gtill has to be met for the improvement of the programs. For the FY 2004, a
quarterly non-fiscal report is required from each program managers in response

to the need of a system that will document, monitor and evaluate its wvarious
activities.

Finding No. 01-13

Condition: Reports were not maintained to document the activities under the
Comprehensive Student Achievement & Participation Program.
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Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2003

Finding Na, 01-13, Continued

Corrective Action: During the FY 2003 audit, all program managers under the
Consolidated Grants provided a report summarizing the activities performed,
goals achieved, evaluation of the activities held and future objectives that
still has to be met for the improvement of the programs. For the FY 2004, a
qguarterly non-fiscal report is required from each program managers in response
to the need of a system that will document, monitor and evaluate its various

activities.
Finding Wo. 01-14

Condition: PSS did not conduct any evaluation of the programs teo ensure its
effectiveness in meeting the program’s purposes and objectives.

Corrective Action: During the FY 2003 audit, all program managers under the
Consolidated Grants provided a report summarizing the activities performed,
goals achieved, evaluation of the activities held and future objectives that
still has to be met for the improvement of the programs. For the FY 2004, a
guarterly non-fiscal report is required from each program managers in response
to the need of a system that will document, monitor and evaluate its wvarious
activities. This condition was still considered and identified as a finding in
the 2003 audit report as Finding No. 03-01.

Finding No. 01-15

Condition: PSS does not maintain an inventory of materials sent to the schools.
This is based on the terms and conditions stated on the State Plan regarding the
local use of funds.

Corrective action: For the current year, no corrective action yet was taken to
fully correct this finding. The same condition was identified in the Audit of
fiscal year 2003 as Finding Wo. 03-2.

Finding No. 01-16

Condition: For the fiscal year 2001, PSS conducted only one site visit during
the second quarter.

Corrective Action: During the FY 2003 audit, all program managers under the
Consolidated Grants provided a report summarizing the activities performed,
goals achieved, evaluation of the activities held and future objectives that
still has to be met for the improvement of the programs. For the FY 2004, a
quarterly non-fiscal report is required from each program managers in response
to the need of a system that will document, monitor and evaluate its various

activities.
Finding No. 01-17

Condition: PSS was not able to provide the Annual Child Count for the year
2001.

Corrective action:  Resolved. PSS was able to provide the annual child count
for the year 2003. This reflects that a system is currently in place to ensure
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Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2003

Finding No. 01-17, Continued

that all requirements on the Federal regulations and activities or services to
be performed as indicated on the State Plan are all being complied with.

Finding No. 01-18

condition: There was no Memoranda of Understanding (MOU) established with the
Division of Youth Services for the year 2001. As justified by PSS, the MOU
expired September 30, 1999. No MOU was considered necessary after this date
because PSS performs services for the DYS at no charge. No consideration was
exchanged between the two parties, DYS and PSS, therefore no MOU is required.
PSS failed to update and make the necessary changes on the documentation of
their plans and programs identified in the State Plan.

Corrective action: For the current year, no corrective action yet was taken to fully
correct this finding. The same condition was identified in the gingle audit for
fiscal year 2003 as Finding No. 03-4.

Finding No. 01-19

condition: PSS did not develop a service plan for its implementation on private
schools.

Corrective action: Resolved. Based on the IDEA Part B & C Self Assessment
Report of the Special Bducation of PSS, it is not a regquirement for public
agencies to develop services plans for each and every parentally placed private
school child with a disability residing in the LEA’s jurisdiction regardless of
whether that child receives services from LEA.

Finding No. 01-21

condition: There were no site visits made to selected schools to review IEP’s
during the fiscal year ended September 30, 200l. Therefore, the State
Educational Agency did not comply with the terms set forth in the 2000-2001
gtate Plan and as required by 34 CFR §300.146.

Corrective action: During the fiscal year 2003, site visits were conducted as
documented in their CIMP report.

Finding No. 01-22

Condition: As of September 30, 2001, the regulations imposed on childcare
providers were still in draft format. This could imply that there is no clear
basis on the PSS to issue payments to the current childcare providers, as they
cannot be fully regarded as approved providers since the day care rules and
regulations are not yet promulgated.

Corrective action: Resolved. The administrative regulations on childecare
providers have been promulgated on December 12, 2003.

Finding No. 01-23

Condition: PSS lacks management oversight that would warrant compliance with
the criteria in meeting the needs of each child. 1In addition, PSS lacks the
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Finding No. 01-23, Continued

necessary system and procedures that will provide concrete data and statistics
regarding children with disabilities.

Corrective action: During the fiscal year 2003, the Headstart of PSS was able to
coordinate with the related agencies of the program for children with
disabilities to ensure that all children that needs their service were
considered and fully accounted for.

Finding No. 01-25

Condition: PSS does not have regular services available from specialists such
as Ophthalmologists and Mental Health Psychologists. Patients are referred only
when necessary immediately following the free physical examination required
before registering for Head Start. Parents are then responsible for any other
expenses incurred during specialized treatment or follow-up services.
specialized dental health services for children with disabilities are uot also
available locally.

Corrective action: A Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) was executed between the
Department of Health and the Headstart program of PSS. The MOA accommodated the
needs of the children enrolled under the Headstart on their comprehensive health
program. However, this MOA is not yet fully executed as this has not yet been
signed by both parties. This was considered as Finding No. 03-5 in the 2003

audit report.

2000 Audit Findings
Finding No. 00-3

Condition: It appears that PSS does not adeqguately monitor adherences to its
travel policies. As of fiscal year ended September 30, 2000, PSS outstanding
travel advances was S$552,799 of which significant amcunt pertains to prior

years.

Corrective action: Resolved. PSS management has made tremendous efforts to
inform employees of the travel advance policies. A new travel policy dated
August 1,2002 was issued regarding strict enforcement of the travel liquidation.
The policy indicates that 10% of the total travel advances will be withheld and
will be paid out to the traveler only upon liquidation; otherwise, the 10% will
be forfeited. From this policy, the management exercised strict adherence fully
correcting the findings noted above. During the audit of FY 2003, no finding
with the same condition was identified.

Finding No. 00-8

Condition: PSS’ balance sheet of general and special fund as of September 30,
2000 was not balanced. The difference noted on one fund was traced and located
from the other fund.

Corrective action: Resolved. During the year, the management of PSS performed
an analysis of their current accounts. This helped them ensure that at the end
of each reporting period, generated financial reports represent the accurate
information that fair and correct financial decisions can be made ocut of it.
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Finding No. 00-9

Condition: Expenditures pertaining to Consolidated Grant Program are well
supported but P38 failed to adhere to the requirements of the State Plan. There
was no proper monitoring of the activities held during the year, no records were
maintained on the number of meetings held, the number of parents receiving the
training and type of training provided for the fiscal year 2000.

Corrective action: During the FY 2003 audit, all program managers under the
Consolidated Grants provided a report summarizing the activities performed,
goals achieved, evaluation of the activities held and future objectives that
still has to be met for the improvement of the programs. For the FY 2004, a
guarterly non-fiscal report is required from each program managers in response
to the need of a system that will document, monitor and evaluate its various
activities.

Finding No. 00-10

Condition: Eligibility test for the Nutrition Assistance Program produced the
following results:

a. 6 participants or 24% of the participants tested have only one paycheck as
proof of income attached to the application form.

b. 7 participants or 28% of the participants, who are food stamp recipients, do
not have a photocopy of the Food Stamp I.D. card attached to the Nap
recipient form to show independent verification of this number.

Corrective action: Resolved. Food and nutrition services of PSS improved their
current system to ensure that all of the necessary documentation is received
before a child is enrolled in the Food and Nutrition Assistance Program. For
fiscal yvear audit of 2003, no finding with the same condition was identified.

Finding No. 00-11

Condition: Eligibility test for the Child Care and Development Block Grant
showed the following:

a. 7 applicants or 28% do not have copy of birth certificates or passports to
verify their citizenship

b. 6 applicants do not have birth certificates to proof that children were under
the age of 13.

Corrective action: Resolved. Child Care and Development Block Grant of PSS
improved their current system to ensure that all of the necessary documentation
is received before a child is enrolled in Child Care and Development Block
Grant. For fiscal year audit of 2003, no finding with the same condition was
identified.

Finding No. 00-14

Condition: For its Consolidated Grant Program, PSS failed to submit the annual
report to U.S Department of Education.

Corrective action: The 2002 and 2003 annual report was subsequently submitted
to the U.S. Department of Education last November 17, 2003.
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Finding No. 00-15

Condition: Review of the Quarterly Performance reports concerning submission
compliance for the Nutrition Assistance Program are noted as follows:

Date No. of
Submitted days late
Quarter ended
December 31, 1999 03/28/00 56 days
Quarter ended
September 30, 2000 03/09/01 129 days
Corrective action: Resolved. The Federal Program Office of P85S took the

necessary measures to ensure that they would comply with the reporting deadlines
of the quarterly performance reports as required by Food and Nutrition. During
the audit of FY 2003, no finding with the same condition was identified.

Finding No. 00-16

Condition: The CNMI/PSS has not complied within the period required for the
submission of annual Single Audit of the Nutrition Assistance Grant for fiscal

year 2000,

Corrective action: With the multi-year proposal, the audit of the FY 2003 has
already started in December 2003. The planned date for its submission will be
on May 2004. This will be a month early before the deadline, which is on June
2004. The management of PSS has made an extensive effort toc ensure that all
schedules and supporting documents have been provided to speed up the completion
of the audit.

Finding No. 00-17

Condition: PSS failed to comply with the submission of annual report for its
Child Care and Development Block Grant.

Corrective Action: Resolved. PSS was able to provide the current year annual
report as required by the Department of Health and Human Services. This results
to compliance on the reporting requirements of Childcare funds.

Finding No. 00-18

Condition: PSS did not conduct any evaluation of the programs under the
Consolidated Grant Program to ensure its effectiveness in meeting its purposes
and objectives.

Corrective Action: buring the FY 2003 audit, all program managers under the
Consolidated Grants provided a report summarizing the activities performed,
goals achieved, evaluation of the activities held and future objectives that
still has to be met for the improvement of the programs. For the FY 2004, a
quarterly non-fiscal report is required from each program managers in response
to the need of a system that will document, monitor and evaluate its wvarious
activities. This condition was still considered and identified as a finding in
the 2003 audit report as Finding No. 03-01.
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Finding No. 00-19

Condition: Under the Special Education Program, no service plan was developed
and implemented for each private school child with a disability that has been
designated to received special education and other related services.

Corrective action: Resolved. Based on the IDEA Part B & C Self Assessment
Report of the Special Education of PSS, it is not a requirement for public
agencies to develop services plans for each and every parentally placed private
school child with a disability residing in the LEA’s jurisdiction regardless of
whether that child receives services from LEA,

FPinding Wo. 00-20

Condition: PSS was not able to provide the Annual Child Count for its Special
Education Program in the year 2000.

Corrective action: Resolved. PSS was able to provide the annunal child count
for the year 2003. This reflects that a system is currently in place to ensure
that all requirements on the Federal regulations and activities or services to
be performed as indicated on the State Plan are all being complied with.

Finding No. 00-21

condition: PSS was not able to provide a report that would verify an analysis
of CNMI needs for professional development was conducted during the year under
its Special Education Program.

Corrective action: For the current year, no corrective action yet was taken to
fully correct this finding. The same condition was identified in the Audit of

fiscal year 2003 as Finding No. 03-3.
Finding No. 00-22

Condition: There were no site visits made to selected schools to review IEP’s
during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000. Therefore, the State
Educational Agency did not comply with the terms set forth in the 2000-2001
Special Education Program’s State Plan and as required by 34 CFR §300.146.

Corrective action: During the fiscal year 2003, site visits were conducted as
documented in their CIMP report.

Finding No. 00-23

condition: There was no Memoranda of Understanding (MOU) established with the
pDivision of Youth Services for the year 2000. The MOU with the Center for Child
and Family Guidance was implemented on October 1, 1996 but did not have an
annual review performed as stipulated.

Corrective action: For the current year, no corrective action yet was taken to
fully correct this £finding. The same condition was identified in the Single
audit for fiscal year 2003 as Finding No., 03-4.
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Finding No., 00-24

Condition: Records showed that no medical and dental screening and examinations
were provided for each child enrclled in the Head Start program.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000, the Head Start program had total
program expenditures of $1,237,018.

Corrective action: A Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) was executed between the
Department of Health and the Headstart program of PSS. The MOA accommodated the
needs of the children enrolled under the Headstart on their comprehensive health
program. However, this MOA is not yet fully executed as this has not yet been
signed by both parties. This was considered as Finding No. 03-5 in the 2003
audit report.

Finding No. 00-25

Conditicn: PSS has unavailable regular services from specialists such as
Ophthalmologists and Mental Health Psychologists. Patients are only referred
only when necessary immediately following the free physical examination required
before registering for Head Start. Parents are then responsible for any other
expenses incurred during specialized treatment or follow-up services.
Specialized dental health services for children with disabilities are not also
available locally.

Corrective action: A Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) was executed between the
Department of Health and the Headstart program of PSS. The MOA accommodated the
needs of the children enrolled under the Headstart on their comprehensive health
program. However, this MOA is not yet fully executed as this has not yet been
signed by both parties. This was considered as Finding No. 03-5 in the 2003
audit report.

1999 Findings
Finding No. 99-9

Condition: It appears that PSS does not adequately monitor adherences to its
travel policies. As of fiscal year ended September 30, 1999, PSS outstanding
travel advances were $508,212, of which, a significant amount pertains to prior
years.

Corrective action: Resolved. PSS management has made tremendous efforts to
inform employees of the travel advance policies. A new travel policy dated
August 1,2002 was issued regarding strict enforcement of the travel liquidation.
The policy indicates that 10% of the total travel advances will be withheld and
will be paid out to the traveler only upon liguidation; otherwise, the 10% will
be forfeited. From this policy, the management exercised strict adherence fully
correcting the findings noted above. During the audit of FY 2003, no finding
with the same condition was identified.
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Finding No. 99-13

condition: The files that were examined were provided by the Special Education

(SPED) Central Office and reviewed on the premises. Generally, the files
appeared incomplete, disorganized, and lacking in attention to detail. Many
documents were incomplete or altogether missing. Those documents that were

present were generally lacking a combination of required signatures, complete
and relevant dates, correct student date of birth, and check boxes that were

marked.
25 files were reviewed.

although fourteen of the 25 files were on students with disabilities that had
been in the program prior to 199%, four of those files contained complete
information so it c¢an reasonably be agsumed that the documentation of
eligibility determination did not significantly change from one state plan to
the next. Consequently, all 25 files were audited for the stated criteria.
Specific information is as follows:

a) Thirteen files or 52% of the 25 files did not contain the annual IEP as
required by the 1997-1999 State Plan and 34 CFR §300.342.

b) Sixteen files or 64% of the 25 files lacked a properly documented Referral.

c)} Eight files or 32% of the 25 files had incomplete or missing Permission to
Test and/or Release of Information forms.

d) Twelve files or 48% of the 25 files had incomplete ox missing documentation
of initial CST Meetings.

e) TFourteen files or 56% of the 25 files had missing Eligibility Meeting
documents or the Eligibility Meeting was not held within the designated
timeline for final assessment of student disability.

Corrective action: With the implementation of the school visits to review
IEP’'s, the individual students files will be complete and organized. The
central office files will be reviewed, completed and organized in an efficient
manner. A checklist for the content of each fill will be developed and used to
monitor and assure that the files are complete and organized. School principals
will be given a memo describing the condition of the student files and
corrective action measure if needed 4o correct the deficiencies. This is
actually a one-time occurrence and should be a non-issue on subsequent fiscal

periods.

Finding No. 99-14

Condition: There were no site visits made to selected schools to review IEP’s
during the fiscal year ended September 30, 1999. Therefore, the State

Educational Agency (SEA) did not comply with the terms set forth in the 1997-
1999 State Plan and as required by 34 CFR §300.146.

Corrective action: During the fiscal year 2003, site visits were conducted as
documented in their CIMP report.
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Finding No. 99-15

Condition: There was no Memoranda of Understanding (MOU) established with the
Division of Youth Services for the year 2000. The MOU with the Center for Child
and Family Guidance was implemented on October 1, 1996 but did not have an
annual review performed as stipulated. It was not reviewed and updated until

January 31, 1999.

As justified by PSS, the MOU expired September 30, 1999. No MOU was considered
necessary after this date because PSS performs services for the DY¥S at no
charge. No consideration was exchanged between the two parties, DYS and PSS
therefore, no MOU is required. PSS failed to update and make the necessary
changes on the documentation of their plans and programs identified in the State
Plan. :

Corrective action: For the current year, ho corrective action yet was taken to
fully correct this £finding. The same condition was identified in the Single
audit for fiscal year 2003 as Finding No. 03-4,

Finding No. 99-16

Condition: The Special Education Program was unable to provide the respective
sEsaP and Special Education Program annual reports for the 1998-1999 school

year.

Corrective action: Enhanced effort has already been made to ensure that PSS
complies with the requirements set forth in the CNMI State and Federal

regulations,
Finding No. 99-18

Condition: a. TFifteen files or 60% of the 25 files had incomplete or missing
health records.
b. Tweo files or 8% of the 25 files did not have dates on the

application.
C. One file or 4% of the 25 files had no income verification.

Corrective action: Resolved. Headstart Program of PSS improved their current
system to ensure that all of the necessary documentation is received before a
child is enrolled in the Headstart Program. For fiscal year audits of 2003 and
2002, no finding with the same condition was identified.
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Finding Wo. 9%-22

Condition: Ten disbursements or 23% of 43 disbursements tested were travel
advances that were not liguidated in accordance with PSS policy.

Date Date
of of
travel liguidation APV # Amount
05/22/989 06/02/99 1646 $ 15.00
06/18/98 06/02/99 1638 140,00
07/08/98 06/02/99 1636 1,305.95
02/10/98 06/02/99 1639 85.00
06/16/98 06/02/99 16490 85.00
12/09/97 06/02/99 1644 15.400
06/30/98 06/03/99 1666 15.00
01/30/98 06/02/99 1625 1,745.00
08/03/98 06/02/99 1627 315.00
04/26/98 06/02/99 1637 1,063.55
Total 5 4,784,5¢
Corrective action: Unresolved. PS8 management has already made tremendous

efforts to inform employees of the travel advance policies. A new travel policy
dated August 1,2002 was issued regarding strict enforcement of the travel
liquidation. The policy indicates that 10% of the total travel advances will be
withheld and will be paid out to the traveler only upon liquidation: otherwise,
the 10% will be forfeited. From this policy, the management exercised strict
adherence fully correcting the findings noted above. During the audit of FY
2003, no finding with the same condition was identified.

Finding No. 99-26

Condition: The cumulative expenditures reported per SF-269 relating to 1999
grant as of September 30, 1999 shows variance when compared to the general
ledger as follows:

Total expenditures per SF-269
(org. 5901, 5902, 5903, 5904,
5905, 5906, 5907, 5909, 5910,

5912 and 5919) § 2,325,224
Total expenditures per general

ledger for same organization 2,402,689
Variance S (77,465)

Corrective Action: Resolved. For fiscal years 2000 to 2003, PSS has taken the
corrective actions to reconcile their records for all amounts reported to the
grantor agency. The cumulative expenditures reported per SF-269 in FY¥'s 2000 to
2003 ties up with amount in the general ledger. Variance noted above was
subsequently corrected in FY 2000.

The non-occurrence of the same finding for four consecutive years merely
reflected an improved system of the PSS.
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Finding No. 99-27

Condition: There were noc PMS5-272's relating to the year ended September 30, 1999
found on file thus adherence to the regquirement could not be determined.

Corrective action: Enhanced efforts were already made in fiscal years 2000 to
2003 in preparing and retaining all reguired reports. This was subsequently
corrected, as there was no finding identified with the same condition in fiscal
years 2000 to 2003 audits.

The non-occurrence of the same finding for four consecutive years merely
reflected an improved system of the PSS.

Finding No. 99-28
Condition: The SF-269A expenditures reported for period covering October 1, 1998
to September 30, 199% relating to the 1998 grant shows variance when compared to

general ledger expenditures as follows:

Total expenditures per SPF-269A
(org. 2876, 2877, 2878, 2879

and 2880) $ 925,069
Total expenditures per general
ledger for same orgs 826,077
98,992
Prior fiscal year overstatement
of general ledger expenditures (98,992)
%

Corrective action: Resolved. For the fiscal years 2000 to 2003, PSS has taken
corrective actions to reconcile their records for all amounts reported to the
grantor agency. The cumulative expenditures reported per SF-269 in 2000 to 2003
ties up with amount in the general ledger. The difference noted was
gsubsequently corrected in FY 2000.

The non-occurrence of the same finding for four consecutive years merely
reflected an improved system of the PSS.

Finding No. 99-29

condition: The amounts reported per 8SF-269 relating to 1998 grant covering
expenditures from October 1, 1998 to September 30, 1999 filed and submitted on
October 18, 1999 noted difference against general ledger as follows:

Expenditures per SF-269 from
October 1, 1998 to September
30, 1999 5 829,116

Expenditures per general
ledger for orgs 2883, 2884

and 2885 (825,994)
Variance $ 3,122
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Finding No. 99-29, Continued

Corrective action: Resolved. Enhanced efforts were made in fiscal years 2000
to 2003 to ensure that the amounts reported to the grantor agency reconciles
with the general ledger. The attachment of a copy of the general ledger as a
supporting document on the financial reports on file minimizes the occurrences
of this condition and would also serve for future reference. The cumulative
expenditures reported per SF-269 in fiscal years 2000 to 2003 ties up with
amount in the general ledger. The variance noted above was subsequently closed

and reconciled in FY 2000.

The non-occurrence of the same finding for four consecutive years merely
reflected an improved system of the PSS.

Finding No. 99-30

Condition: The SF-269 for the second gquarter of the 1999 grant covering the
months from January 1999 to March 1999 was filed eight days late. There were no
SF-269 for third and fourth quarter covering period of April 1, 1999 to June 30,
1999 and July 1, 1999 to September 30, 1999, regpectively. The cumulative
expenditures of the annual reports when compared to general ledger shows

variance as follows:

cumulative expenditures to
September 30, 1999 per SF-269 $ 1,222,697

Ccumulative expenditures to
September 30, 1999 per general

ledger for orgs 2981 and 2982 1,187,010
Variance §__ 35,687

Corrective action: Resolved. Enhanced efforts were made to submit the required
financial reports in a timely manner and that the amounts reported to the
grantor agency reconciles with the general ledger. In the fiscal years 2000 to
2003 audits, the cumulative expenditures reported per SF-269 ties up with amount
in the general ledger and PSS was able to adhere to the reporting deadlines. The
variance noted above was subsequently corrected in the FY 2000 audit.

EH

The non-occurrence of the same finding for four consecutive years merely
reflected an improved system of the PSS.

Finding No. 99-31

Condition: Variances were noted between the cumulative expenditures reported per
fourth quarter status report (PMS 272-A) and the general ledger as follows:

Total expenditures per PMS 272-A
quarter end for organization 2981

and 2982 $ 1,257,645

Total expenditures per general

ledger for same organization 1,187,010

Variance § . 70,635
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Finding No. 99-31, Continued

Corrective action: Resolved. Enhanced efforts were subsequently made to ensure
that the amounts reported to the grantor agency reconciles with the general
ledger. The attachment of a copy of the general ledger as a supporting document
on the financial reports on file minimizes the occurrences of this condition and
would alsc serve for future reference. In the fiscal years 2000 to 2003 audits,
the cumulative expenditures reported per PMS-272 ties up with amount in the
general ledger. The variance noted above was subsequently corrected and
reconciled in the FY 2000 audit. The non-occurrence of the same finding for
four consecutive years merely reflected an improved system of the PSS.

Finding No. 99-32

Condition: The PMS-272 for the quarter period ending June 30, 1999 was signed
and submitted on August 23, 1999 (nine days late). The total expenditures show
variance when compared to dgeneral ledger as follows:

Total reported expenditures
for 1999 relating to 1988
grant (organization 2881

and 2882) $ 110,248
Total expenditures per general

ledger for same organization 7,116
variance $ 103,132

Corrective action: Resolved. Enhanced efforts were subsequently made to ensure
that the amounts reported to the grantor agency reconciles with the general
ledger and submitted in compliance with the reporting requirement. The
attachment of a copy of the general ledger as a supporting document on the
financial reports on file minimizes the occurrences of this condition and would
also serve for future reference. In the fiscal years 2000 to 2003 audits, the
cumulative expenditures reported per PMS-272 agrees with amount in the general
ledger and timely submission of the reports was adhered to. The variance noted
above was subseguently corrected and reconciled in the FY 2000 audit. The non-
occurrence of the same finding for four consecutive years merely reflected an

improved system of the PSS.
Finding No. 99-33

Condition: Variances were noted between the program expenditures for the
Childcare and Development Block Grant per the fourth quarter status report and
the general ledger as follows:

Total 1999 expenditures
relating to 1998 grant
(organization 2890, 2891,

2894 per ACF-696 and PMS-272) § 77,215

Total expenditures per general

ledger for same organization 74,475

Variance g 2,740
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Finding No. 99-33, Continued

Corrective action: Resolved. Enhanced efforts were made +to ensure that the
amounts reported to the grantor agency reconciles with the general ledger. The
attachment of a copy of the general ledger as a supporting document on the
financial reports on file minimizes the occurrences of this condition and would
also serve for future reference. In the fiscal years 2000 to 2003 audits, the
cumulative expenditures reported per ACF-696 and PMS-272 ties up with amount in
the general ledger. The variance noted above was subseguently corrected and
reconciled in the FY 2000 audit.

The non-occurrence of the same finding for four consecutive years merely
reflected an improved system of the PSS.

Finding No. 99-34

Condition: Review of the PMS reports concerning submission compliance are noted
as follows:

Date No. of
Submitted days late
PMS-272 quarter ended
March 31, 1999 June 16, 1999 32 days
PMS-~272 guarter ended
June 30, 1999 August 23, 1999 9 days
PMS-272 guarter ended
September 30, 1999 November 22, 1999 8 days
Corrective action: Resolved. Submission of the report was late due to the

unavailability of the form in the internet. Enhanced effort was made to submit
the PMS8-272 on or before the due date. A corrective action was subsequently
taken on this condition in fiscal years 2000 to 2003, as there was no finding of
the same condition identified during the 2000 to 2003 audits.

The non-occurrence of the same finding for four consecutive years merely
reflected an improved system of the PSS.

Finding No. 99-35

Condition: The ACF-696 for gquarter ending June 30, 1999 relating to 1999 grant
was submitted three days late from report deadline.

Corrective action: Resolved. Enhanced efforts were made to maintain, adhere to
federal reporting requirements and submit financial reports in a timely manner.
This was subsequently corrected, as there was no finding of the same condition
identified in the audit years of 2000 to 2003. The non-occurrence of the same
finding for four consecutive years merely reflected an improved system of the
PSS,
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1998 audit Findings
Finding No. 98-3

Condition: In eleven disbursements or 28% of the forty payroll disbursements
tested, timesheets could not be located on the following:

Date Check no. Amount
10/07/97 242837 5 977.02
10/22/97 273710 658.59
11/18/97 246810 356.89
12/17/97 248587 997.06
01/01/98 249761 447,72
01/01/98 249980 664.72
01/13/98 250856 752.81
01/13/98 251493 369.63
02/25/98 254109 323.50
02/25/98 254128 319.64
03/11/98 255742 1,046.99

Total $6,914,57

Corrective action: This is a document retention problem. When PSS moved in
2001, some documents were transported to their Lower Base storage and some were

misplaced. Extra efforts are being made to f£ile the supporting documents
promptly. Subsequently, there was no finding identified with the same condition
noted in the fiscal years 2000 to 2003 audits. The non-occurrence of the same

finding for four consecutive years merely reflected an improved system of the
PSS. Resolved.

Finding No. 98-4

Condition: In six disbursements or 15% of the forty payroll disbursements
tested, employment contracts could not be located.

Corrective action: PSS will be including an Employee File Checklist not only to
assist in improving the £iling system, but will also ensure that P88 is in
compliance with and meeting their policies and procedures. The non-oCCUrrence
of the same finding for four consecutive years merely reflected an improved
system of the PSS. Resolved. '

Finding No. 98-7

Condition: There were no detailed subsidiary ledgers for travel advances
available for audit as of the fiscal year ended September 30, 1998. The
available detailed subsidiary ledger for travel advances is as of April 1, 1999
amounted to $455,950.

Corrective action: This is a document retention problem. PSS moved from Nauru
Building to Capitol Hill and some documents were transported to Lower Base.
Enhanced effort was made to maintain subsidiary ledgers on a regular basis. We
have provided the auditors the schedule of travel advances and its subsidiary
ledger for the audit years 1999 to 2003. The non-occurrence of the same finding
for four consecutive years merely reflected an improved system of the PSS.
Resolved.
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Finding No. 98-9

Condition: It appears that PSS does not adequately moniter adherences te its
travel policies. As of fiscal year ended September 30, 1998, PSS outstanding
travel advances was $441,170, of which significant amount pertains to pricr
years.

Corrective action: Resolved. PSS management has made tremendous efforts to
inform employees of the travel advance policies. A new travel policy dated
August 1,2002 was issued regarding strict enforcement of the travel liquidation,
The policy indicates that 10% of the total travel advances will be withheld and
will be paid out to the traveler only upon ligquidation; otherwise, the 10% will
be forfeited. From this policy, the management exercised strict adherence fully
correcting the findings noted above. puring the audit of FY 2003, no finding
with the same condition was identified.

Finding No. 98-14

Condition: The department has only one employee and there was nc employment
contract provided by personnel department.

Corrective action: The contract for Ms., Lilian Bennett was not included with
the Notification of Personnel Actions from a period of two years from February
12, 1997 to May 1999. BAn employee file checklist has been established to keep
files in order and to ensure that they are complete with the proper required
documents. The non-occurrence of the same finding for four consecutive years
merely reflected an improved system of the PSS. Resolved.

Finding No. 98-15

Condition: Personal action forms require approval from the Commissioner of
Education. The approval was not present.

Corrective action: Enhanced efforts have already been made to ensure that files
are organized and more complete. An employee file checklist is now required to
be included in the employee’s file to ensure that PSS is in compliance and meets
the established policies and procedures. The non-occurrence of the same finding
for four consecutive years merely reflected an improved system of the PSS.

Finding No. 98-16

Condition: The files that were examined were provided by the Special Education
(SPED) Central Office and reviewed on the premises. Generally, the files
appeared incomplete, disorganized, and lacking in attention to detail. Many
documents were incomplete or altogether missing.

Those documents that were present were generally lacking a combination of
required signatures, complete and relevant dates, correct student date of birth,
and check boxes that were marked.

Two files or 8% of the 25 requested files were not available for review. The
two missing files were on students from Rota. Additionally, there was a file on
one student that contained documents from two different people with the same
name .
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Finding No. 98-16, Continued

There were numerous inconsistencies regarding the date of birth and identity of
the two individuals so the file was turned over to the Special Education staff
for action. There was no additional review performed on that file.

Although seventeen of the 23 files were on students with disabilities that had
been in the program prior to 1998, six of those files contained complete
information sSo it can reasonably be assumed that the documentation of
eligibility determination did not significantly change from one state plan to
the next. Consequently, all remaining 22 files were audited for the stated
criteria. Specific information is as follows:

a) Eight files or 36% of the 22 files did not contain the annual IEP as required
by the 1997-1999 State Plan and 34 CFR §€300.342.

b) Eleven files or 50% of the 22 files lacked a properly documented Referral.

c) Nine files or 41% of the 22 files had incomplete or missing Permission to
Test and/or Release of Information forms.

d) Thirteen files or 59% of the 22 files had incomplete or missing documentation
of initial Child Study Team (CST)} Meetings.

e) Nine files or 41% of the 22 files had migsing Eligibility Meeting documents
or the Eligibility Meeting was not held within the designated timeline for
final assessment of student disability.

Corrective action: Resolved. Enhanced efforts have been made to ensure that
established policies and procedures are being adhered to. This was subsequently
corrected, as there was no finding identified with the same condition in the
fiscal years 2001 to 2003 audits. The non-occurrence of the same finding for
four consecutive years merely reflected an improved system of the PSS.

Finding No. 98-17

Condition: There were no site wvisits made to selected schoocls to review
Tndividual Educational Plan’s (IEP) during the fiscal year ended September 30,
1998. Therefore, the State Educational Agency (SEAR) did not comply with the
terms set forth in the CHMI 1997-1999 State Plan and as required by 34 CFR

§300.146.

Corrective action: During the fiscal year 2003, site visits were conducted as
documented in their CIMP report.

#inding No. 98-18

Condition: There was no Memoranda of Understanding (MOU) established with the
Division of Youth Services for the year 2000. The MOU with the Center for Child
and Family Guidance was implemented on October 1, 1996 but did not have an
annual review performed as stipulated. It was not reviewed and updated until
January 31, 1999. As justified by PSS, the MOU expired September 30, 1999. No
MOU was considered necessary after this date because PSS performs services for
the DYS at no charge. No consideration was exchanged between the two parties,
pYs and PSS therefore, no MOU is required.

pss failed to update and make the necessary changes on the documentation of
their plans and programs identified in the State Plan.
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Finding ¥No. 98-18, Continued

Corrective action: For the current year, no corrective action yet was taken to
fully correct this finding. The same condition was identified in the BSingle

audit for fiscal year 2003 as Finding No. 03-4.
Finding No. 98-19

Condition: Two files or 8% of the 25 requested files were not available for
review although all 25 applicants were approved and received childcare
assistance.

a) One applicant (4%) was attending school in California and therefore not
eligible for childcare assistance. Documents were later proved that showed
guardianship for the child had been transferred to the grandparents but the
application was not amended.

b) One file or 4% out of 23 files was missing proof of income eligibility.

c) Three files or 13% out of 23 files were missing proof of parental
citizenship.

d) One file or 4% out of 23 files was missing proof of age for the child.

e) Eleven files or 48% out of 23 files lacked a signed Certificate and

Confirmation Form.

The application form does not contain a space for the name and/or signature of
the individual approving the eligibility of the applicant therefore it was not
possible to determine the level of involvement of the Childcare Coordinator in

the process.

Corrective action: Resolved. Child cCare and Development Block Grant of PSS
improved their current system to ensure that all of the necessary documentation
is received before a child is enrolled in Child Care and Development Block
Grant. For fiscal year audit of 2003, no finding with the same condition was

identified.
Finding No. 98-20

Condition: The list of participant names only included those that were in the
program beginning in April 1998 leaving the first six months of the year
unaudited.

a) One participant’s name was on the list two times with two different social
security numbers. All other demographic information indicated that this was
the same person.

b) The file of one participant (whose name was on the master list) was reguested
as part of the original 25 files to be reviewed. The auditor was told that
his name was on the list in error and that the applicant had been denied
benefits,

¢) While examining the supporting documents £for cash disbursements from the
General Fund, it was noted that there were names of children being submitted
by the childcare providers for reimbursement for childcare services whose
mother’s names were not on the master list of approved participants.

1. One participant had a completed and approved application on file but the
name of the participant was not on the master list.
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Finding No. 98-20, Continued

2. One participant had a completed and approved application on file but the
Certificate and Confirmation Form in the childcare file was not updated
for the dates of service indicated by the invoice submitted by the
childcare provider. The participant’s name was not on the master list.

3. One participant was lacking an application and eligibility documents.
However, the Certificate and Confirmation Form in the childcare file was
current for the time period indicated on the invoice submitted by the
childecare provider. The participant’s name was not on the master list.

Corrective action: Resolved. Enhanced effort to review, monitor and update the
files of each recipient on a quarterly or annual basis was made in compliance
with the administrative requirements indicated. There was no finding of the
same condition identified in the fiscal years 2000 to 2003 audits. The non-
occurrence of the same finding for four consecutive years merely reflected an
improved system of the PSS.

Finding No. 98-22

Condition:
a) Four files or 16% of the 25 files requested for review were not available,

b) Eight files or 38% of the 21 files had incomplete or missing health records.
¢) Four files or 19% of the 21 files had no proof of birth.
d) Four files or 19% of the 21 files had no income verification.

Corrective action: Resolved. Enhanced effortz have been made to monitor all
necessary documentation of each child enrolled within the Headstart program. A
memorandum dated April 1, 2002 was issued to program managers enforcing
administrative compliance, participants receiving this program are to be
monitored, reviewed and updated annually.

The non-occurrence of the same finding for four consecutive vyears merely
reflected an improved system of the PSS.

Finding No. 98-28

Condition: In six disbursements or 15% of the 39 disbursements tested, there was
no underlying or supporting documentation to support the transaction.

Date APV # Amount
02/25/98 Unknown $ 1,195.00
08/03/98 Unknown 1,050.00
12/18/97 988500 29.81
12/18/97 988400 : 101.25
09/24/98 986274 5,410.00
06/09/98 984382 420.00

Total §=§i;g§igg

In one disbursement or 3% of the 39 disbursements tested the cancelled check was
missing for the following tramnsaction.

Date APV # Anmount
11/03/97 380465 $§ 7,355,15
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Finding No. 9%8-28, Continued

Corrective action: This is a document retention problem. PSS moved from Nauru
Building to Capitol Hill and some documents were transported to Lower Base.
Enhanced effort was made to maintain subsidiary ledgers on a regular basis. We
have provided the auditors the schedule of travel advances and its subsidiary
ledger for the audit years 1999 to 2003. The non-occurrence of the same finding
for four consecutive years merely reflected an improved system of the PSS.

Finding No. 98-29

Condition: In eight disbursements or 24% of the 33 disbursements tested, there
was no underlying or supporting documentation to support the transaction.

Date APV # Amount
05/01/98 00086968 $ 3,929.00
08/21/98 211461 1,375.00
12/30/97 988489 94.00
02/03/98 988528 94.00
09/22/98 986246 1,737.34
09/30/98 986451 1,160.00
09/30/98 986619 755.47
09/30/98 986763 519.98

Total $.9,664.79

Corrective action: This is a document retention problem. PSS moved from Nauru
Building to Capitol Hill and some documents were transported to Lower ‘Base.
Enhanced effort was made to maintain subsidiary ledgers on a regular basis. We
have provided the auditors the schedule of travel advances and its subsidiary
ledger for the audit years 1999 to 2003. The non-occurrence of the same finding
for four consecutive years merely reflected an improved system of the PSS.

Finding ¥Wo. 98-30

Condition: Two disbursements or 6% of thirty-three disbursements tested were
property items that had not been identified as the property of PSS.

Date P.O.# Check# Amount Description

11/18/97 EB0O23 81926 52,097.00 3 ea. White
Westing
Refrigerator

02/26/98 E80404 84675 2,097.00 3 ea. White
Westing
Refrigerator

The two transactions detailed above were justified with written documentation as
follows:

The memo of justification for the first +transaction was dated 10/08/97 and
stated that refrigerators were needed at Headstart Centers in FPaupau, Kagman,
and San Antonio Peer with the refrigerator at San Antonio Peer to be replaced.
The receiving report is present and shows that all three refrigerators were
received but does not indicate disposition,
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Finding No. 98-30, Continued

The memc of Jjustification for the second transaction was dated 12/12/97 and
stated that refrigerators were needed at Headstart Centers in Sinapalo, Kagman,
and Dandan with the refrigerator at Dandan to be replaced. The memo further
stated that Kagman desperately needed a refrigerator although one was purchased
specifically for Kagman two months earlier according +to the memo of
justification dated 10/08/97. The receiving report is present but does indicate
the disposition of the refrigerators.

A subsequent follow-up memo from the Procurement Office to the warehouse that
was written in June 2001 when property records were requested by the auditor
documents that there are only 5 White Westinghouse Refrigerators present in the
Head Start Centers. There is no record of the whereabouts of the sixth.
Additionally, there are no property report records of the six refrigerators and
no survey records for the ones taken out of service.

Corrective action: No corrective action yet has been made on this finding.
However, with the improved system of PSS, non-occurrence of the same finding for
four consecutive years was noted.

Finding No. 98-31

Condition: In one disbursement or 3% of the 33 disbursements tested, the items
that were procured were unnecessary to the maintenance and operation of the
program. Two different funeral baskets were purchased: one on $/15/97 for
575.00 and the other was %/5/97 for $47.50.

Date ApyV # Check # Amount
12/30/97 981318 82911 $ 122.50

Corrective action: No corrective action yet has been made on this finding.
However, with the improved system of PSS, non-occurrence of the same finding for
four consecutive years was noted.

Finding No. 98-33

Condition: The CNMI/PSS has not complied within the period required for the
submission of annual Single Audit of the Nutrition Assistance Grant for fiscal
year 1998.

Corrective action: With the multi-year proposal, the audit of the FY 2003 has
already started in December 2003. The planned date for its submission will be
on May 2004. This will be a month early before the deadline, which is on June
2004. The management of PSS has made an extensive effort to ensure that all
schedules and supporting documents have been provided to speed up the completion
of the audit.
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Finding No. 98-35

Condition: The cumulative expenditures reported per SF-269 relating to the July
1, 1996 to September 30, 1998 grant period shows variance when compared to the

general ledger as follows:

Total expenditures (org. 5801,
5402, 5803, 5804, 5805, 5807,

5809, 5810 and 5819) $ 3,549,779

Total expenditures per general

ledger for same orgs 3,564,365
$ _(14,586)

Corrective action: Resolved. Enhanced efforts were made to ensure that the
amounts reported to the grantor agency reconciles with the general ledger. The
attachment of a copy of the general ledger as a supporting document on the
financial reports on file minimizes the occurrences of this condition and would
also serve for future reference. 1In the fiscal years 2000 to 2003 audits, the
cumulative expenditures reported per SF-269 ties up with amount in the general
ledger. The non-occurrence of the sgame finding for four consecutive years
merely reflected an improved system of the P8S. The variance noted above that
was carried forward to FY 1999 was subsequently corrected and reconciled in FY
2000 audit. :

Finding No. 98-36

Condition: There were no PMS-272's relating to the year ended September 30, 1998
found on file thus adherence to the requirement could not be determined.

Corrective action: Resolved. Enhanced efforts were already made to prepare and
retain all required reports. In fiscal years 2000 to 2003 audits, PSS was found
to be in adherence to the federal reporting requirements. The non-occurrence of
the same finding for four consecutive years merely reflected an improved system

of the PSS.
Finding No. 98-37

Condition: There is no SF-269 to prove that expenditures for second quarter
ended March 31, 1998 has been reported and filed within the required due dates,
instead a report of SF-269 covering from September 30, 1397 through June 30,
1998 expenditures was reported and £filed on July 10, 1998. Additionally,
comparison of the cumulative expenditures as of September 30, 1998 relating to
1998 grant reported per SF-26% against the general ledger shows variance as
follows:

Cumulative expenditures as

of September 30, 1998 per

SF-269 ] $ 1,063,533

Cumulative expenditures to

September 30, 1998 per general

ledger for organization 2881

and 2882 1,055,643
variance s 7,890
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Summary Schedule of Unresolved Prior Year Audit Findings
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Finding No. 98-37, Continued

Corrective action: Resolved. Enhanced efforts were made to submit the required
financial reports in a timely manner and reconcile records for all amounts
reported to grantor agency. The attachment of a copy of the general ledger as a
supporting document on the financial reports on file minimizes the occurrences
of this condition and would also serve for future reference. The Federal
Program Office is now assigned to prepare the federal required reports.

In fiscal years 2000 to 2003 audits, the cumulative expenditures reported per
SF-269 ties up with amount in the general ledgers and PSS was found to be in
adherence to the federal reporting deadlines. The variance noted above that was
carried forward to FY 1999 was subsequently corrected and reconciled in FY 2000
audit. The non-occurrence of the same finding for four ccnsecutive years merely
reflected an improved system of the PSS.

Finding No. 98-38

condition: PMS-272 for the fourth quarter ended September 30, 1998 was not
gigned and dated that adherence to the above requirement could not be
determined. Additionally, the report covering expenditures from April 1, 1998
to September 30, 1998 shows variance when compared to general ledger as follows:

Cumulative expenditures as
of September 30, 1998 per
PMS-272 5 1,037,846

Cumulative expenditures as
of September 30, 1998 per
general ledger for organization

2881 and 2882 1,055,643
variance (17,797
Corrective action: Resolved. Enhanced efforts were made to properly document

the filing of federal financial reports and reconcile records for all amounts
reported to grantor agency. The attachment of a copy of the general ledger as a
supporting document on the financial reports on file minimizes the occurrences
of this condition and would also serve for future reference.

In fiscal years 2000 to 2003 audits, the cumulative expenditures reported per
PMS-272 tie up with amounts in the general ledgers and filing of federal
financial reports is properly documented. The wvariance noted above that was
carried forward to FY 1999 was subsegquently corrected and reconciled in FY 2000
audit. The non-occurrence of the same finding for four consecutive years merely
reflected an improved system of the PS8S.
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Finding No. 98-39

Condition: The cumulative expenditures reported relating to 1998 grant per
Federal Financial Reports PMS-272 and ACF-696 shows variance when compared to

general ledger as follows:

Total expenditures (organization
2890, 2891, 2892, 2894) per
ACF-696 and PMS-272 % 495,551

Total expenditures per
general ledger for same

organization 487,661
Variance 5 __ 7,890

Corrective action: Resolved. Enhanced efforts were made tc ensure that the
amounts reported teo the grantor agency reconciles with the general ledger. The
attachment of a copy of the general ledger as a supporting document on the
financial reports on file minimizes the occurrences of this condition and would
also serve for future reference. This was subsequently corrected in the fiscal
years 2000 to 2003 audits. The non-occurrence of the same finding for four
consecutive years merely reflected an improved system of the PSS.

Finding No. 98-40

Condition: The amounts reported to SF-269 relating to the 1998 grant covering
expenditures from October 1, 1997 to September 30, 1998 did not agree to that of
expenditures per general ledger. Variance noted arrived as follows:

Expenditures per SF-269 as
of September 30, 1998 $ 1,179,721

Expenditures per general
ledger as of September 30,
1998 for organization 2883,

2884 and 2885 1,185,831
Variance 5 . (6,110)

Corrective action: Resolved. Enhanced efforts were made to submit the required
financial reports in a timely manner and that the amounts reported to the
grantor agency reconciles with the general ledger. In the fiscal year 2000 to
2003 audits, the cumulative expenditures reported per SF-269 ties up with
amounts in the general ledgers and PSS was able to adhere to the reporting
deadlines. The variance noted above that was carried forward to FY 1999 was
subsequently corrected and reconciled in FY 2000 audit. The non-occurrence of
the same finding for four consecutive years merely reflected an improved system
of the PSS.
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Finding No. 98-41

Condition: Variances were noted between the program expenditures for the
Nutrition Assistance Grant per the annual status report (SF-269a) and the

general ledger as follows:

Total expenditures per
SF-269A {(organization 2876,

2877, 2879, 288B0) $ 2,633,560
Total expenditures per

G/, for same organization 2,732,552
Variance {28,992)

Variance noted to subsequent
general ledger expenditures 98,992

-

Corrective action: Resolved. Enhanced efforts were made to ensure that the
amounts reported to the grantor agency reconciles with the general ledger. The
attachment of a copy of the general ledger as a supporting document on the
financial reports on file minimizes the occurrences of this condition and would
also serve for future reference.

In the fiscal years 2000 to 2003 audits, the cumulative expenditures reported
per SF-269 ties up with amount in the general ledger. The variance noted above
that was carried forward to FY 1999 was subseguently corrected and reconciled in
FY 2000 audit. The non-occurrence of the same finding for four consecutive
years merely reflected an improved system of the PSS.

1997 audit Pindings
Finding No. 97-2

Condition: Our testing of Accounts Payable Vouchers (APVs) indicated many
instances (non-federal) where supporting documentation was not available,
receipt of goods was not evidenced, and price quotations from three sources had
not been obtained.

Corrective action: PSS moved in 1996 and some documents were misplaced.
Currently, extra efforts are being made to file supporting documentation
promptly and maintain these files. With a non-occurrence of the same finding
for four consecutive years, an improved system of the PSS is merely reflected.

Finding No. 97-5

Condition: Testing of opening fund balances as of September 30, 1%97 revealed
numerous immaterial adjustments made to fund balance during the year.

Corrective action: No immaterial adjustments made to fund balance have been
made since the fiscal year audit of 2000.
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Finding No. 97-7

Condition: Pre-numbered receiving reports, inventory issuance slips, subsidiary
ledgers and written inventory count instructions were not used in fiscal year
1997.

Corrective action: Inventories were directly expensed to the appropriate
expenditure accounts at cost at the time of acquisition during fiscal year 1997.
The Procurement Office of PSS is conducting an inventory of all assets and is in
the process of upgrading its system of accounting for inventories.

Finding No. 97-9

Condition: The vouchers pavable subsidiary ledger was not provided for all funds
as of Septembexr 30, 1997.

Corrective action: Enhanced efforts are made to prepare monthly
reconciliation/schedule at the end of the fiscal year. The non-cccurrence of
the same finding for four consecutive years merely reflected an improved system
of the PSS.

Finding No. 97-10

Condition: From a total of $5,487,863 of encumbrances for all governmental fund
types at September 30, 1997, twenty-five items, totaling $927,037, were tested.
Documentation for five items with a wvalue of $135,529 was unavailable for our
review.

Corrective action: This is a document-filing problem that required changes both
in personnel and procedures to satisfactorily correct the situation. Enhanced
efforts have already been made to ensure that files are organized and more
complete. No finding has been identified during the fiscal year audit of 2000
to 2003. The non-occurrence of the same finding for four consecutive years
merely reflected an improved system of the PSS.

Finding No. 97-12

Ccondition: From a total of $593,483 of non-payroll direct expenditures, a sample
of ten items, with a total value of $224,065, was tested of which two items were
found to have the following deficiencies:

1. A sole source purchase (C7009301) with a wvalue of $120,000 (APV #277184,
check #80310) did not include any written justification of the reasons for
no estimates being obtained from other sources, as well as no indication
that +he service provided can only be obtained from this provider.
Additionally, documentation indicates that the services provided under this
contract were performed in a previocus fiscal year but funds were not
encumbered or expanded until fiscal year 1997.

2. One expenditure (P61034) for §3,400 (check #72597) did not have adequate
supporting documentation.

Corrective action: This is a document retention problem. The documents were
accidentally detached and lost during packing and/or re-filing when the Fiscal
office was relocated to the Nauru Building.
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Finding No. 97-12, continued

Enhanced efforts have been made to file all supporting documentation for
expenditures and secure these documents numerically filed in locked filing
cabinets.

Moreover, the non-occurrence of the same finding for four consecutive years
merely reflected an improved system of the PSS.

Finding No. %7-13

Condition: From total grant payroll expenditures of $1,192,121, a sample of 25
items, with a total value of $25,102, was tested. 0f these, one employee
{13065) did not have adeguate documentation to justify salary for the pay period
ended July 5, 1007, Based on the sample, annual salary is estimated to be
$22,555.

Corrective action: The Human Resources Office lost the personnel details for
this employee in the relevant pay period. They were unable to verify the
education and experience of the individual, which are the determining factors in
computing the rate of pay. The Human resources Office will develop computerized
files for each employee that are maintained on both hard and floppy discs in
addition to the original singled hard copy that constitutes the employee master
file.

Moreover, the non-occurrence of the same finding for four consecutive years
merely reflected an improved system of the PSS.

Finding No. 97-15

Condition: From total grant payroll expenditures of $2,087,064, a sample of 25
paychecks with a value of $23,977 was tested. 0f these, one (employee #7117)
did not have adequate documentation to justify salary for the pay period ended
February 1, 1997. Based on gross pay tested, annual salary is estimated to be
513,678.

Corrective action: The Human Resources Office lost the personnel details for
this employee in the relevant pay period. They were unable to verify the
education and experience of the individual, which are the determining factors in
computing the rate of pay. The Human Resources Office will develop computerized
files for each employee that are maintained on both hard and floppy discs in
addition to the original signed hard copy that constitutes the employee master
file.

Moreover, the non-occurrence of the same finding for four consecutive years
merely reflected an improved system of the PSS,

Finding No. 97-16

Condition: From a total of $683,461 of non-payroll direct expenditures, a sample
of 38 items, with a total wvalue of $95,487 were tested with the following

results:

1. fTwo purchases (APV #972077, 975329) with a value of 511,718 did not have
three price quotations or any justification for not having such guotationms.
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Finding No. 97-16, Continued

Corrective action: This is a document retention problem. The documents were
accidentally detached and lost during packing and/or re-filing when the Fiscal
office was relocated to the Nauru Building. Enhanced efforts will be made to
file all supporting documentation for expenditunres and secure these documents
numerically filed in locked filing cabinets.

Moreover, the non-occurrence of +the same finding for four consecutive years
merely reflected an improved system of the PSS.

Finding No. 97-17

Condition: Of 25 applicants tested, we noted one applicant’s file did neot
include reason for eligibility despite being above income guidelines; seventeen
applications’ files did not contain a signature on the review checklist; one
applicant did not have birth certificate; nine applicants did not have proof of
annual household income; and one registration form was not provided for the
current year. The Headstart program enrolled 497 children during the year ended
September 30, 19%7 and had total program expenditures of §$1,181,144. bollar
amounts of questioned costs directly related to the finding could not be
ascertained.

Corrective action: Resolved. This is a document retention problem that has
been exacerbated by the Headstart program moving three times in the last three
years. Enhanced efforts are being made to ensure that c¢hild enrollment
documents are properly filed and maintained in a locked file. Moreover, the
non-occurrence of the same finding for four consecutive years merely reflected
an improved system of the PSS.

Finding No. 97-18
Condition: Of 25 participant files tested, the fellowing items were noted:

1. One participant’s eligibility worksheet did not have an administrator’s
signature evidencing approval and review.
2. One participant’s file could not be provided; therefore, eligibility could

not be determined.

The Childcare and Development Block Grant program had total program expenditures
of $772,021 for the year ended September 30, 1%97. Dollar amounts of guestioned
costs directly related to this finding could not be ascertained.

Corrective action: Resolved. Child Care and Development Block Grant of PSS
improved their current system to ensure that all of the necessary documentation
is received befeore a child is enrolled in Child Care and Development Block

Grant. For fiscal year audit of 2003, no finding with the same condition was
identified.

Finding No. 97-21
Condition: PSS did not provide an annual report for audit review.

Corrective action: Resolved. PSS have subsequently prepared an annual report
for fiscal year 1997.
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Finding No. 97-22

Condition: The CNMI/PSS has not submitted an annual independent Single Audit of
the Nutrition Assistance Grant for fiscal year 1997 within the period requested.

Corrective action: With the multi-year proposal, the audit of the FY 2003 has
already started in December 2003. The planned date for its submission will be
on May 2004. This will be a month early before the deadline, which is on June
2004. The management of PSS has made an extensive effort to ensure that all
schedules and supporting documents have been provided to speed up the completion
of the audit.

Finding No. 97-26

Condition: PSS enrolled 497 children in the Headstart Program during fiscal year
1997. The enrollment and attendance level specified in the Notice of Financial
Assistance Award is 559, which exceeds the PSS enrollment level by 62,

Corrective action: The Headstart Program did enroll 559 children prior to the
start of school however, attendance fluctuated and only 497 children were in
attendance at the end of the school year. PSS will establish a waiting list and
enroll additional children as soon as there are slots available.

Finding No. 97-30

Condition: Two PMS-272s relating to the quarters ended March 31, 1997 and June
30, 1997 were not dated and adherence to the above requirement could not be
determined.

Corrective action: Beginning the fiscal year 1998, the preparation of reports
and monitoring of federal reporting requirements were transferred from the
Fiscal & Budget office to the Federal Programs office. There was no finding
with the same condition was identified in the fiscal year 2000 to 2003 audits.
Moreover, the non-occcurrence of the same finding for four consecutive years
merely reflected an improved system of the PSS. Resolved.

Finding No. 97-31

Condition: No SPF-269s were provided for audit review, relating to the year ended
September 30, 1997.

Corrective action: This is a document retention problem. Enhanced efforts will
be made by procurement staff to retain documentation that shows compliance with
established federal reporting procedures. This was however, subsequently
corrected in the 2001 to 2003 audits. Moreover, the non-occurrence of the same
finding for four consecutive years merely reflected an improved system of the
PSS. Resolved.
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PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM

Summary Schedule of Unresolved Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2003

IIT. SUMMARY QOF UNRESOLVED QUESTIONED COSTS

Beginning Resolved Unresolved
Questioned Costs Costs Questioned Questioned
Costs Allowed Disallowed costs Costs

Total prior years guestioned

cogts reported in the

fiscal years 1993 through

1997 $ 915,727 § - 3 - & B46,418 § 69,309

1398 491,117 - - 438,798 52,319

1999 169,426 - - 169,426 -

2000 - - - - -

2001 - - - - _

2002 - - - - -

2002 - - - = -
Total priocr year questioned

costs at September 30, 2003 §$ 1,576,270 § - % - $ 1,454,642 § 121,628
Questioned costs for fiscal

year ending 2003 - - - - -
Total unresolved questioned

costs at September 30, 2003 § 1,576,270 § = 3 - 5 1,454,642 $ . 121,628
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Dear Mr. Magliari:

We are transmitting herewith our responses to the audit findings and recommendations
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Director of Finance
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HE TR IN N O D e e e e

Finding No. 03-1
We concur, We have recently hired a Federal Monitoring Officer whose services will
be dedicated to evaluating the effectiveness of the different programs and ensuring their
adherence to the procedures prescribed by the Secretary of Education. An employment
contract will be provided for your review to validate the corrective action taken. The
Federal Monitor will begin employment with PSS on May 3, 2004.

Finding No. 03-2
We agree with this finding. Accurate inventory of materials sent to the private schools
in prior yeas was non-existent given the difficulty of employing a full-time trained
Federal Monitoring Officer. With the cmployment of the Monitoring Officer, this non-
compliance will be rectified with a rigorous system that will document, monitor and
evaluate the activities of the grantee agencies.

Finding No. 03-3

We concur. We have recently hired a CSPD Coordinator to implement the activities
and objectives of the Comprehensive System of Personnel Development for the Special
Education Program. The CSPD Coordinator submitted a detailed report of CSPD
activities to the auditor on March 5, 2004. Not listed in the report is the recruitment of
an off-island Special Education School Counselor, and on-island Special Education
Teacher.

Finding No. 03-4
We concur. The FY 2004 Eligibility Document (State Plan) will be updated correcting
and resolving this finding. In addition, we have already drafted and signed a
Memorandum of Agreement with the Division of Youth Services.

Finding No. 03-5

We concur. The Memorandum of Agreement is currently with the Northern Marianas
College for signature. PSS has already followed up and asserts that the MOA will be
signed by the related parties to speed up the implementation of the comprehensive
health program as required under the Headstart program.

Finding No. 03-6

We agree with the finding. The Fire Division of the Department of the Public Safety
conducted a follow-up fire safety inspection of the nine Headstart centers in Saipan on
March 15" and 16% of 2004. A copy of these reports will be provided for your review
validating the corrective action takern. The Tinian Headstart was previously inspected
on October 15, 2003.
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Finding No. 03-7

We concur. In reference to the response made in Finding No. 03-6, an approved
disposition in accordance with the Uniform Fire Code was granted to the nine Headstart
centers in Saipan based on the follow-up fire safety inspection conducted by the Fire
Division of the Department of Public Safety on March 15" and 16® of 2004. For the
Tinian Headstart Center, a fire safety certification was issued on October 15, 2003
stating that the center has met the fire safety requirements as seth forth by Public Law

1-8.

Finding No. 03-8

We agree with the finding. A contract for preventive and maintenance and repair work
of all the Saipan Headstart facilities was awarded to System International Construction
under purchase order numbers 28995 OL and 29434 OL. The scope of work addresses
the deficiencies and violations cited by the Division of Public Health and Department of

Public Safety.

All Headstart Centers are now staffed with qualified coordinators who are tasked with
overseeing the daily operation of the centers and ensuring total compliance with the

local and federal requirements.
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